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Financial Highlights
MBEE

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET FOR THE YEAR £ RRTIEMMEE| 9 2 & £ 5

2014 2013
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. PRC including Hong Kong B (B3EEH) 0.30% . PRC including Hong Kong # Bl (B1E&E#) 0.27%
. Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A E fib ih & 37.66% . Other regions in Asia Pacific 32 A £ ftb i & 44.57%
. North and South America 1t 35 )M 2 I 3 M 39.97% . North and South America 4t 32 M K2 3 3£ M 42.84%
. Europe B 22.07% . Europe B 12.32%

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR SRR I EXBE o2 X5

2014 2013
—ZE-0F —E-=

L D

. Manufacture and sale of medical devices products . Manufacture and sale of medical devices products
HERHERFRBER 34.70% HERHERFRIFBER 27.73%

. Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products . Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
HERHEBBEAER 65.30% BERHEEBEAER 72.27%



Financial Highlights
MERE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS R EEERE

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of AMCO TXRHIERZERER AR ([ARAFE ) KEH
United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, BRF (F#E[AEE|)RIRFEFEBHZET

the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated: Mg ER:

OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2014 2013
REEZ (THBT) —E—-MmE —T—=
Turnover R 76,470 89,006
Loss for the year FEEE (48,287) (74,613)
FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'000) 2014 2013
BEMRR (F8x) —E-mE —ET—=
Equity/(Capital deficiency) attributable to RAREB ANEE#ER

owners of the Company (BAREA) 48,186 (36,673)
Total assets BEE 81,943 46,499
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AaE)FE 48,186 (36,673)
Net assets/(liabilities) value per share gREE,/ (BRF)FE (BI)

(HK cents) 3.1 (4.2)
FINANCIAL STATISTICS 2014 2013
B i g st —E-mEF —EF—=
Current ratio’ i Bh B 2.3 0.4
Total debt to total assets ratio? AR (B T EL AR A B b 2 0.4 1.8
Return on total assets (%)3 488 FE B3R K (%)3 (58.9) (160.5)
Return on sales (%) 15 B 3K (%)* (63.1) (83.8)
Loss per share from continuing and REBERERIEKEER 2

discontinued operations (HK cents) Tk EE (BL)

Basic HAR (4.1) (8.5)

Diluted BE N/A 73 M N/A 38 F

Notes: BT -

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities. 1.  RELETDUARSDEERU RS BETH

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total 2. RBEKERLEELEDNBEEBERNUNBEE

indebtedness by total assets.

i s
=5
al = °

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by 3. RBEERREIAFEEERNBEETE -

total assets.

4.  Return on sales is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by 4. $HERBEDIAFEBEBERNEEETH -

turnover.
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Corporate Information
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CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.amco-united.com
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

The result of 2014 was a mixture of good and bad. During the year, we
witnessed the rebound of the manufacture and sale of medical device
products (the “Medical Devices”) while the manufacture and sale of
plastic moulding products (the “Plastic Moulding”) recorded an relatively
underperformed result even under strict policies of cost control and cost
reduction. Despite the performance of the Plastic Moulding segment
has missed expectation, the Group hails 2014 as a pivotal year where
we laid down a solid foundation for future business development and

transformation.

Benefit from the demand rebound of our customers’ end products,
the performance of the Medical Devices segment improved with the
increment of revenue and reduction in segment loss. Regardless of the
rising wages and overhead expenses in China that have been provoking
a fresh round of relocation of manufacturing and production, we chose
to stay in our existing business partnerships so as to provide prompt
response and flexible customised production. The effort was rewarded by

increasing customer orders in 2014.

However, our Plastic Moulding segment continued to record a significant
loss under the challenging operating conditions. China’s manufacturing
environment created a double-edged sword for the Group’s business
activities in 2014. Unlike those labour-intensive manufacturers who
move their factories to cheaper locales in Southeast Asia, we achieved
a sustainable competitive advantage through enhanced customer value
and satisfaction. In addition, the rising operation costs are mitigated
with stringent cost containment measures and business process
re-engineering. Even with various effective measures such as
subcontracting of certain manufacturing processes and the relocation
of manufacturing plant, many of our customers’ end products are
entering the mature stage of their lifecycle. For the best interests of the
shareholders of the Company (”Shareholders”), we decided to cease
the operation of the Plastics Moulding by the end of the first quarter of
2015, so as to better allocate our resources to provide greater returns for

our Shareholders.

We aim to build multiple streams of revenue for stable and sustainable
long-term profitability; we strive to examine every possible business
development opportunities across different business sectors. With all the
research and development work and due diligence projects done in 2014,
we have captured potential investments and/or business development

opportunities from a range of industries.

—HFERAFRS Y AEERERHER
BREEM ([BREREDEBEQ MEER
HEZBRAER ([EBEA ) ERAEER
REITRAZEG RRAEIRBER T FEDAR
WMER-BELRBEASBRBAREZES YA
SEmME —T-NFRRBREE  AEEE
AREBERRLRBUTEHERERE-

XEREPEmEMRTRET  BERED BX
HRoE WA ”*BJEET@H’N%E%EPI
BN AN LR R RE R AEE LT
—mER EAKEERERFAAERBRHH
1/%’ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁ%@‘ﬂ%@ﬁ&%@iﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁoﬁﬁf’ﬁp‘
NBEREE —FT-—MEFXFIEBMEM-

ST ZJK‘EI#’HH E‘E‘§ RERET
BESSKEER- —mE - PERER
R ;17«!&%.%5‘% M —L@mIT - BRNS

NEEEERERHE BT R E DR AREM
B AEEZARTEFEERAEFRERER
BZEM KIMAERFERFED - ILIN &
K S T8 O B HE 1T BR AR B AR S R b R B
EBnEmZ BB ERMEE HETTANA S TR
LIf&L%’*'JiW%%ﬁWTﬁE@'ﬂKET\’J\
BER&GEMDEEWARGRE - BREAR

HX%(FHX%J)ZW1¢%'J@’Z’K§§?%Eﬁ/t\:;

—RFEF-FRAKRUELEBRRARS W
EREEERIR RRREHRERDR-

FEBEHEETZ ARATRR  UWERFHRERE
ZAIFERNEEN *ﬁﬁiﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁ?\lﬂ%igﬁﬂwﬂ
BEAEXHERKE BE_T—NFKHAA
METIERERATEBR $’§IE}WE ERN
RITET 2 BERER, " REBERES -



PROSPECTS

The performance of the Medical Device segment has shown some
improvements in 2014 which was a result of the continuous business
process re-engineering and administrative restructuring effort over the
past few years. This long-term cost containment system will no doubt
continue to help cost savings, but the momentum and sales order of the
business relied heavily on the demand of customers’ end products. The
loss of any sales order due to change of customers’ marketing strategies
or discontinued end-products may adversely affect the operating results

and financial condition of this segment in future.

After the cessation of the Plastics Moulding business, the Group is
striving to penetrate into the new markets to strengthen its income
stream. Concurrently, many employers are struggling to fully utilise
enterprise resources thus outsourcing non-core/non-revenue generating
activities before administrative processes slow down the firm's
productivity. To grasp these market opportunities, the Group will
transform its operational structure into a diversified corporation, initially
focusing on business process outsourcing such as public relations and

human resources management services.

With the rising awareness of corporation communications functions,
there is a growing demand in public relations services. The Group plans
to provide comprehensive solutions, including corporate communications,
investor relations, media relations, conference and event management, to

meet the clients’ critical communications needs.

Human resources management remains another important component
of businesses’ long-term competitiveness in Hong Kong, as the recent
demographic trends such as aging population and improving financial
performance in the major corporations are likely to result in demand for
talent outstripping supply. With the aim to deliver broad-based human
resources solutions for general and investment banks and multi-national
corporations, the Group plans to provide potential customers a “one-
stop-shop” to fulfill their staffing needs from professional services and
consulting to clerical positions. The Group believes that value will be
added to customers by increasing their overall financial performance with

its performance-based staffing solutions.

Chairman’s Statement

EERE

a2z

1

il
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

The preparation work of public relations and human resources
management services has nearly approached the final stage, a new
office located at Central, Hong Kong was scheduled to be opened
in the second quarter of 2015. For future business development and
investment, the Group will adopt more collaborative business models to

explore every potential opportunity.

Yip Wai Lun, Alvin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015

RERANEREERE T HZEH®IECRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, turnover of the Group amounted
to HK$76.5 million, representing a decrease of HK$12.5 million or
14.1% from HK$89 million as compared to last year. Revenue from
the manufacture and sale of medical devices products (the “Medical
Devices”) business increased by 7.5% to HK$26.6 million. Whereas,
revenue of the manufacture and sale of plastics moulding products (the
"Plastics Moulding”) business dropped by 22.4% to HK$49.9 million.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$6.0 million, representing a decrease
of 57.3% or HK$8.0 million as compared to that of 2013. Gross profit
margin dropped 7.9 percentage points to 7.8% (2013: 15.7%), as a

result of the increasing cost of labour and production overhead.

Other income under the review year was recorded a decline of 85.2% as
compared to HK$8.9 million in the corresponding year of 2013, which
was mainly due to the decreased profit caused by the deregistration of

certain subsidiaries and absence of other one-off income for the year.

With the implementation of stringent cost control and streamlining
measures, the distribution cost and administrative expenses of the Group
declined by HK$1.1 million and HK$15.4 million to HK$3.3 million
and HK$33.5 million respectively (for the year ended 31 December
2013: HK$4.4 million and HK$48.9 million respectively), representing a
reduction of 26.7% and 31.6% against 2013 respectively.

The impairment loss and write off for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$14.0 million, representing a decrease of 65.9% as compared
to HK$41.0 million in 2013. Such decrease was mainly attributed to
the reduction in impairment loss on goodwill and property, plant and

equipment of HK$22.2 million and HK$3.6 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the recognition of loss in fair
value upon the conversion of convertible notes through profit or loss was
HK$4.0 million as compared to the recognition of loss in fair value of

outstanding convertible notes of HK$1.7 million in 2013.

As a result, the Group’s overall loss attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$48.3 million, which shows an improvement of 35.4%

as compared to HK$74.6 million loss in 2013.

EEEFNWE DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacture and sale of medical devices products
("Medical Devices")

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Medical Devices segment
recorded revenue of HK$26.6 million, increased by 7.5% or HK$1.9
million as compared to HK$24.7 million in the previous year. This amount
represented 34.7% of the Group’s total revenues for the year under
review. The increase of revenue was mainly due to the resumption of
sales orders from the key customer in America, where its end-product has
been relaunched to the market after an unexpected recall in the first half

of 2013.

Segment’s performance recorded a loss of HK$4.7 million, improved by
HK$1.3 million or 21.3% as compared to loss of HK$6.0 million in the
previous year. The Group gained economies of scale with increasing sales
order. Revenue growth also allowed the Group to better leverage its fixed
costs as indicated by the decrease in selling, general and administrative
costs as a percentage of revenues. In addition, the Group has completed
and continued to undertake initiatives to reduce operating costs through

consolidation of select departments and administrative functions.

During the past few years, the worldwide business environment,
unexpected recall of the end customer’s product and China’s
manufacturing challenges were the major reasons which affected the
performance of this segment. As at 31 December 2014, the management
had assessed the recoverable amount of this business segment and
determined that an impairment loss on goodwill and property, plant and
equipment of HK$11.8 million and HK$2.1 million were recognised in

2014 respectively.

£ JE):

RERHEBERBER ([BE
&)

HE-_Z-MNF+-_A=Z+—HILLFE Z&
= BB 8x 15 W A26,600,00078 7T B K F 2
24,700,0007% JT 3 iN7.5% 3% 1,900,000 T ° 5%
CREAREENRBEFE 2HBWAZ347% °
WAEMDFERRKREERAZEFERTP R
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TS IRE S AT B AT

oAb E RS 184,700,000 T R A F
7 5186,000,0005% JT 2 1,300,000 7T 5k
213% - AL EFHFHEFT B MM T BRRE
BB o WG RIS N B 15 LA 4F 122
EEMA  HE - —MREITBRAMERAET DL

PEENRFARE - LN AEE R B BEARTED
P9 Ko 77 IR Bk B 52 A I 46 48 BRERHE Bt R A4S K
7N o

RBEABF 2REFBRMR BHIZ &
BREPEMBIKARPREEEEHNEEY
R BRI ER- T-mFE+=
A=+—B EBECFHBLESIH 2T
B4 TIFR S —NEEREHELURY
% W N R R E B 189 511,800,000/ 7T K
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Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
(“Plastic Moulding®)

The revenue from the Plastic Moulding segment decreased by HK$14.4
million, or 22.4% to HK$49.9 million for the year under review, which
accounted for 65.3% of the Group’s total revenue. Certain plastic
moulding products encountered a decrease in sales orders due to the end

of life cycle of some customers’ end products.

In the past few years, this segment continued to operate under a tough
manufacturing environment of heavy cost by labour and overhead
expenses under China’s rapid economic development. However,
the incremental cost cannot be shifted to clients due to the intense
competition in the manufacturing landscape. In order to mitigate the
rising costs and to improve profitability, the Group underwent a cost
containment program including outsourcing of certain manufacturing
processes and relocation of the production lines for Plastics Moulding
business in the first half of the year 2014. As a result, provisions for
the relocation of production lines were made in cost of sales of HK$1.2
million and administrative expenses of HK$2.3 million. Nevertheless,
declining sales orders caused facility idle and brought forth the tense
situation of production gross loss, resulting in an increase in operating

loss of HK$3.5 million or 36.2% to HK$13.2 million.

Taking into consideration that the Group has been adversely affected
by the recent business environment, the Board decided to cease the
operation of Plastics Moulding business by the end of the first quarter of
2015 upon the completion of the existing customers’ orders. The Board
is of the view that the cessation of the operation of Plastics Moulding
business will provide the Group an exit opportunity and additional
working capital, which is in the best interests of the Company and its

shareholders (the “Shareholders”).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital and debt structure

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s consolidated net assets
was approximately HK$48.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$84.9 million as compared to that of 2013, arising from
the completion of share placing activities and conversion of convertible

notes, which set off against the operating loss for the year.

On 24 March 2014, the Company and a placing agent (the “Placing
Agent |”) entered into a placing agreement under the general mandate
(the "GM Placing Agreement 1”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to offer for subscription and the Placing Agent | has
agreed to procure, failing which, the Placing Agent | itself will subscribe
for 175,160,000 placing share (the “GM Placing Shares ") at a price of
HK$0.239 per GM Placing Share | (collectively, the “GM Placing 1”). On
7 April 2014, the GM Placing | was completed. The Company issued a
total of 175,160,000 GM Placing Shares | at a price of HK$0.239 each
to not less than six independent placees. The Company received the
net proceeds of approximately HK$40.3 million from the GM Placing
I, of which (i) approximately HK$10.3 million was used for repayment
of short term loan and the accrued loan interest; (ii) approximately
HK$15.8 million was used for repayment of amount due to a Director;
and (iii) approximately HK$14.2 million was used for payment of general

corporate expenses.
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On the same day, the Company and the Placing Agent | also entered
into another placing agreement (the “SM Placing Agreement”) under
a specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”), pursuant to which, the
Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent
| on a best endeavor basis, up to 175,160,000 placing shares (the “SM
Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees at a placing price HK$0.239
per SM Placing Share by 30 June 2014 or such other date as the parties
may agree in writing (collectively, the “SM Placing”). Pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the Shareholders at the special general
meeting on 20 June 2014 and all of the conditions as set out in the
Company's circular dated 4 June 2014 had been fulfilled, the Company
issued a total of 175,160,000 SM Placing Shares at a price of HK$0.239
each to not less than six independent placees. The Company received
the net proceeds of approximately HK$40.1 million from the SM Placing,
of which approximately HK$8.5 million has been used as intended as to
(i) approximately HK$6.3 million for the research and development of
new medical and/or healthcare products and services; (ii) approximately
HK$0.8 million for the launch of new medical and/or healthcare products
and service; (iii) approximately HK$0.3 million for the set up and
development of e-commerce platform; and (iv) approximately HK$1.1
million for the establishment of new public relations and new human

resources agencies.

Details of the GM Placing | and the SM Placing are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 24 March 2014, 7 April 2014 and 30
June 2014, respectively and the Company’s circular dated 4 June 2014.

On 26 May 2014, the Company issued and allotted 80,087,620 shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.5 per share for the conversion of all
outstanding convertible notes, details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 7 October 2011 and 28 March 2013,

respectively.
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On 31 October 2014, the Company and another placing agent (the
“Placing Agent II”) entered into a placing agreement under the general
mandate (the “GM Placing Agreement II"), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent
Il on a best endeavor basis, up to 226,200,000 placing shares (the “GM
Placing Shares I1”) at a placing price of HK$0.118 per GM Placing Share
Il (collectively, the “GM Placing 1I”). On 14 November 2014, the GM
Placing Il was completed. The Company issued a total of 226,200,000
GM Placing Shares Il at a price of HK$0.118 each to not less than
six independent placees. The Company received the net proceeds
of approximately HK$25.4 million from the GM Placing Il, of which
approximately HK$1.5 million was used as general working capital and
the unutilised net proceeds was placed at the bank. Details of the GM
Placing Il are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 31 October

2014 and 14 November 2014, respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has 1,532,431,606 shares of
HK$0.01 each in issue.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total borrowings from financial
institutions decreased by HK$14.1 million to HK$2.2 million (as at 31
December 2013: HK$16.3 million). All of such borrowings were payable
within one year. Since most of the borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, the risk of currency exposure was minimal. The
Group's total cash and bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$62.6 million at 31 December 2014, which increased approximately
HK$58.0 million as compared to that of 2013 (2013: HK$4.6 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio was 4.5% at 31 December 2014, while that
it was not applicable as at 31 December 2013 because the Group had
a capital deficiency at that date. The ratio was determined by bank and
other borrowings, amount to a director, obligations under a finance lease

and convertible notes over shareholders’ equity.
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Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current ratio and quick ratio were
2.3 and 2.4 respectively (31 December 2013: 0.4 and 0.3). Inventory
turnover on sales decreased to 21 days (31 December 2013: 30 days).

Receivable turnover was 49 days (31 December 2013: 58 days).

Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has pledged its assets with an
aggregate net book value of HK$1.6 million (31 December 2013: HK$4
million) to secure bank facilities granted and finance lease obligations.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at 31 December 2014.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars and the
exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars was relatively stable
during the year, the Group’s exposure to the potential foreign currency

risk is relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’'s employees number was
approximately 36 (31 December 2013: 150). The Group’'s employees
are remunerated largely based on their performance and experience,
alongside with the current industry practices. Remuneration packages
of employees include salaries, insurance, mandatory provident fund and
share option scheme. Other employee benefits include medical cover,

housing allowance and discretionary bonuses.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. YIP Wai Lun, Alvin, aged 52, joined the Company as Executive
Director on 31 July 2009 and was first re-designated as Deputy Chairman
and Deputy Managing Director of the Company on 2 March 2010, and
subsequently re-designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company on 29 October 2010. Mr. Yip, assuming leadership role of the
Board, is responsible for formulating strategic plans, directing business
development and overseeing daily management of the Group. Mr. Yip
has over 25 years of experience as entrepreneur and key management
in a variety of business, ranging from manufacturing and technology to
transportation. He has also led in the formation and management of a
number of joint ventures and partnership arrangement with multinational

companies.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 56, joined the Company as Executive
Director on 1 January 2012 and is responsible for overseeing all
corporate governance matters, leading in corporate finance functions
and participating in business development projects of the Group. Ms.
Leung graduated from the University of Queensland, Australia, with
a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce in February 1982. She is a fellow
member of CPA Australia. Ms. Leung has extensive experience in
accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms. Leung
has been providing corporate finance advisory services for securities and

international merger and acquisition transactions.

Ms. Leung is an independent non-executive director of Yue Da Mining
Holdings Limited, Bossini International Holdings Limited and Four Seas
Mercantile Holdings Limited, which are companies listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. She was an independent non-executive
director of Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited (presently known as China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited) for the period from
May 2011 to May 2013, the shares of which are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHENG Kin Chor, aged 38, joined the Group as a general manager
in June 2014 and was appointed as Executive Director on 1 October
2014. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Cheng obtained his Bachelor of Arts with honours from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 1998. He has over 13 years of
experience in mass media, corporate communication and public relation
planning, as well as provision of related consultation services. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked as an account director in a
private public relation company from October 2003 to May 2014, being
responsible for overseeing the account servicing team. Prior to this, he
served as an editor and reporter for local magazine and newspapers from

March 2001 to July 2003.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Ka Kui, Johnny, aged 57, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director on 28 January 2000 and holds a
Bachelor of Laws of the University of London. Mr. Leung is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong, England & Wales and Singapore, and is a Notary
Public and China Appointed Attesting Officer. He has over 27 years of
experience in legal field and is the senior partner of Messrs. Johnny K.K.
Leung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries. Mr. Leung is currently an independent
non-executive director of Celestial Asia Securities Holdings Limited
and ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Phoenitron Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited for the period from September 2009 to September
2010, the shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHAN Kam Kwan, Jason, aged 41, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director on 11 August 2004 and holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from University of British Columbia,
Canada. He holds a certificate of Certificated Public Accountant issued by
Washington State Board of Accountancy in the United Stated of America.
Mr. Chan has over 10 years’ experience in accounting and corporate
finance. He has been working in a big-4 multinational audit firm and
served a number of listed corporations. Mr. Chan is currently an executive
director and the company secretary of Brockman Mining Limited and
an independent non-executive director of Canvest Environmental
Protection Group Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is also currently the company
secretary of Concord New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as
China WindPower Group Limited) and Frontier Services Group Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He was an executive director of Concord New Energy Group Limited
(formerly known as China WindPower Group Limited) for the period from
December 2006 to January 2014, the shares of which are listed on the

main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LAU Man Tak, aged 45, joined the Company as Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 October 2010 and holds a bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
has more than 15 years of experience in corporate finance, accounting
and auditing. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Hong Kong Securities Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Lau is also currently an independent non-
executive director of KuangChi Science Limited (formerly known as
Climax International Company Limited), Kingston Financial Group Limited
and Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited, which are companies listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. He was an executive director of
China Grand Forestry Green Resources Group Limited (presently known
as China Sandi Holdings Limited) for the period from April 2010 to
September 2012 and an independent non-executive director of Kong
Sun Holdings Limited for the period from September 2008 to April 2014,
which are companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lau was an executive director, the chairman, authorised representative
and compliance officer of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited for the
period from June 2012 to September 2014, the shares of which are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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BEENEREBAEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LYE Khay Fong, aged 74, was the Chairman of the Group engaged
in business of OEM/ODM manufacturing and trading of consumer
products and medical devices. In December 2013, Mr. Lye retired
from the board positions of the Titron Group. However, the Group
will continue to benefit from his experience through his continuing
participation in the operations of the Group as a senior member of the
operational management team. Mr. Lye holds a master’'s degree and
professional engineering qualifications. He has an extensive corporate
track record, having held top management positions in corporations
in Asia, and worked for the Group since 2011. He is currently the Vice
Chairman of the Singapore Chamber of Commerce (Hong Kong) and an
Executive Committee member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association

(Hong Kong).

Ms. YAM Wai Wah Jenny, aged 44, is the Financial Controller of the
Group. Ms. Yam is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting,
financial management and internal control of the Group. Ms. Yam
holds a bachelor’'s degree of Accounting and Financial Analysis from the
University of Warwick in United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Yam has over 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management and previously worked in an auditing firm and
several listed multinational corporations. She joined the Group in July

2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company
has always recognised the importance of shareholders’ accountability
and transparency and is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance. The Company has complied with all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014 as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except

for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the

leadership of the Managing Director.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised three Executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company), Ms. Leung Mei Han and Mr. Cheng Kin Chor; and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny,

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason and Mr. Lau Man Tak.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year, the Board held seven regular meetings and meets as and
when required. The Company Secretary assisted the Chairman and the
Executive Directors in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director
was able to request inclusion of items in the agenda. All such meetings
were convened in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Under
code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity
to attend. During the year, certain Board meetings were convened
with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react
timely and make expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate
transaction and general business update which was significant in nature.
As a result, the Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period than
required with the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best
endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG
Code in the future. Adequate and appropriate information are circulated
to the Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings or
such period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings,
the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the Independent Non-
executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors

during the year.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason and Mr. Lau Man
Tak pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent. The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of all the Independent Non-executive Directors in particular, Mr. Leung
Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, who have served the
Board for more than nine years. Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan
Kam Kwan, Jason do not have any management role in the Company
and its subsidiaries since their appointment. They have expressed their
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and have been
giving objective views to the Company. There is no evidence that
length of tenure has an unfavourable influence on the independence of
long-serving non-executive directors. The Board is satisfied that, as well
proven by the valuable independent judgement and advice given by Mr.
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason over the years, Mr.
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason have the required
character, integrity, independence and experience to perform the role
of an Independent Non-executive Director. The Board is not aware of
any circumstances that might influence Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, in exercising their independent judgement and

therefore believes they are still independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 16 to 19 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of
the Directors shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of
the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three

years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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TRERBME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, (1) any
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment, or (2) any director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company after his/her

appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his/her position,
and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/

her duties effectively and efficiently.

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings, the
annual general meeting ("AGM") held on 30 May 2014 and the special
general meeting (“SGM") held on 20 June 2014 is as follow:

EEE (2

RIBEARAZARARE6Q)E (1NVEE=SE
ZENERREER2ENESFZECHERS
HEZERTEARARRABRAE /I Q)
EXEeZEMAREESTE2ENEST ZEHY
EEEHEZER TEARRBRBERESR
b EREEEREEET

RABEBRER - EFg 2 9EEAKTTRREEE
SRAEREBRYE HBB=22—KEHAE
SMIFMITEEHERK

MBEEEHRAKEEHERATCERRES -
BHRTEFHARBAEERREELR EBE
HBUYABMEERMETERE -

EEMNEFHFEFEER R_F—HFALA
=TRHBTZRRAEFARE ([RRBEFAE])
ER-_F-—MFENA-TRBITZERFHAK
€ ([EREMNKE])ZBERWT :

Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/AERER
Board

Meetings AGM SGM
Executive Directors HITES EXged BRRAFAY BRREINAE
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and ~ E@E L+ 717 0/1 11

Managing Director) (FEREFLHLE)

Ms. Leung Mei Han 2EMI L 717 11 11
Mr. Cheng Kin Chor (Note) BPER R Se A (F95E) 2/2 0/0 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2REEE 6/7 0/1 11
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR 8% 40 55 A 77 0/1 11
Mr. Lau Man Tak B miE 717 0N 11

Note: Mr. Cheng Kin Chor was appointed as an Executive Director on
1 October 2014 and there were 2 Board meetings held after his

appointment.

Wi BEEEER-T-ME+H—BEEE
BROES BECAURITRAEFRY
-



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Yip Wai Lun,
Alvin, the Chairman of the Company, was unable to attend the AGM due

to his other business engagements.

According to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny, Mr. Chan
Kam Kwan, Jason and Mr. Lau Man Tak, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, were unable to attend the AGM due to their other business

engagements.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the year, a newly appointed Director was given an induction after
his appointment so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group's business and of his duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good

corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training
courses or workshops or read materials relevant to his/her professional

and/or duties as Director.

Corporate Governance Report
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TRERBME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEE (2

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional EEZIIRBFEEERE &)
Development (continued)

The individual training record of each Director received for the year CWEIEEEHE—"T—WNFE+_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2014 is summarised below: IEFEZ BRSNSt T

Course/Seminar

provided/
accredited by Reading
professional bodies materials
HERBRE
RAZHER
Directors = wE BMEER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin HEmELE - 4
Ms. Leung Mei Han REME L v -
Mr. Cheng Kin Chor (appointed on HRBEE (RZT—MEF v -
1 October 2014) +A—HEZT)
Independent Non-executive Directors BMYHEHITES
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2 RE T A v -
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR &8 3 5E A v v
Mr. Lau Man Tak B ERAE v v/

Hp

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional BEFNAXFESERR2EEZN WS
il

DEEMNSBEBINAZRLTHNRS 2 ME

e
o

%
\

development and they are committed to participating any suitable

S
$F
o
[\\y

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance,;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

To review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution

of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERBME

EEE (2
& EERBEE

EXZeNBARITUTHHEZEREERRE
(@ HlERBIARNRABZEEEABRERENLS
P

b) BAREREERSREBASEZEIR
FRESRHER:

(0 BARERARBEETEIZELREERTE
THZBRRER:

d) #IE BRIMERERNEERER 217
REJRERTM(ME) Rk

A
D

@
s
iy
it

ARBETEEERTHZERER
BIRMEFIIEZ

EERSABEZEERRRBE

RAEESEEARASRABERRNITREITR
EZHAEMELEREZABIMBER WE-
BRX AXRBE ARSI L IR -

B VI BT HENEHES

N
N



AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2014

N
(o0}

Corporate Governance Report
TRERBME

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by

the same individual.

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director to be
the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during the year
ended 31 December 2014. During the year under review, the Group
has been streamlining its operations, including business development,
operation efficiency and financial management. The Board considers that
it would be in the best interest of the Shareholders that the roles of the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company be combined to
enable a strong and dedicated leadership to reposition the Company
and implement effective measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In
this light, the Company has maintained Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company. The Company will

review the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.

EERITHRAR

RIFEEERTAZ TR FEA2.11G £/F
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i B i st B ATZRHE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Remuneration Committee held three meetings.

The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of

each member during the year are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TEEERBME

FMESS (2

YHEZEem=—RERAENK BF
B TEF-FRN FHMEESRT=ZRERH

FA HFHEEEREREKE ZHERT RN

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Independent Non-executive Directors BUKBITES HE S EEREE

Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny (Chairman) RREFEE (F/E) 3/3

Mr. Lau Man Tak B fEE A 3/3
Executive Director HITES

Ms. Leung Mei Han RERMIZ T 3/3

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the following

duties:

(1) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management for the year ended 31

December 2014; and

(2) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the

newly appointed Director for the year ended 31 December 2014.

FRN HFHEZEGBETUATRE:
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Nomination Committee held two meetings.

The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:

REEEE

ARRERVREAZE® WO ERAEERT
AT EEMBEEE -RR T Eg 2 RESR
BRI REE RPN AR R AL E R

ARBEBERETHRE  ERETRRMER
Fie ERHBEER BEER B MEKk
RBFEE EREFEXBEZTIL - —UEFE
KB 2 Em AR AMS BkiE T ERTHE
A ZREREFEXBZTIL2Ea -

REZEEH=-[EFMAN  EF
FHRTEE-FA RELZEFHTMREH-

Attended/
Eligible to attend

Executive Director HITES HE AEEEE
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman) ERfmkE(FE) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR 5 38 50 A4 2/2
Mr. Lau Man Tak Blxximks 2/2



NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following

duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board member and

made recommendation to the Board on his appointment;

(c) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for

re-election at the AGM for 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and

providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (Chairman), Mr. Leung Ka
Kui, Johnny and Mr. Lau Man Tak. During the year, the Audit Committee

held three meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:

_m
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B
N
B
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BB 2 HE B RN

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFPTES HE AEEREE
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (Chairman) BRE\IM LA (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2HRH\EE 2/3
Mr. Lau Man Tak B EEE 3/3
During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties: FAN - BREESERITUTHRE:

(a) reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the (a) BEEZHBMAEREMEEZ T —=F+_-A4
year ended 31 December 2013 and reviewed the unaudited interim —tT—HEFEZRERMBREREBE
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2014, with —HEANA=ZTHLENEAZREE
recommendations to the Board for approval; BRI EHRE TREERHEESS N

A

(b) reviewed report on internal control system covering financial, (b) FHEBYK LE -RBFARNLERERE
operational, procedural compliance and risk management functions; Biel 2 MEBESIE RIS

() reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory () HEMEBEERATERKZABRERT:
requirements;

(d) reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting (d) HEARFEEELRFHANEB RN
principles and practices adopted by the Group; and SR RED : &

(e) reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor's re- (¢) EH&ZESMzEELRGHER L AEEE
appointment and remuneration. REtEH-

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason and Mr. Lau Man Tak, members of the Audit BREEeRERBMEE R ELEEHES

Committee, possess relevant professional qualifications and financial MBEEXEREVBEEEMRE WA LD

management expertise and meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the FRAIFE3I21EZHRTE -

Listing Rules.



AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Group incurred fees and charges by the auditor, BDO Limited, in
respect of the following auditing and non-auditing services during the

year:

Corporate Governance Report
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B AT &

FR AEERZBELIEXBRGAZBEEMEE
VEEZEHMELMARARAINZERR
S HmT

Fees paid/payable

gt/ ENER

HK$"000

Services rendered REH R FET
Audit services 1% EBR % 730
Non-audit services IEZ RS 80

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 and for the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently. The accounts for the reporting year have been prepared
on a going concern basis, having regard to the financial supports and
measures as more particularly described in note 3(b) to the consolidated

financial statements.

The responsibility of the auditor with respect to these financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53

to 55 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievements of the Group’s objectives.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed and agreed that there are
processes in place for identifying, evaluating and managing reasonably
the material business risks faced by the Group. Such processes are

incorporated in all businesses of the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
shareholders. The annual general meeting of the Company is a valuable
avenue for the Board to enter into direct dialogue with shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of Board committees
will attend the annual general meeting to answer any question. In
addition, the Company convened a special general meeting during the
year to approve the placing of new shares under specific mandate and
the meeting was convened in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the corporate governance procedures of the Company. These provided
further opportunities for shareholders to comment and vote on specific

transaction.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are dispatched to
shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

shareholders.

All the shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear business
days’ notice before the date of the annual general meetings and at least

10 clear business days’ notice for all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of shareholders meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Procedures for convening a special general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company to

request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1005,
10/F, Tower lll, Enterprise Square, 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(the "Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:
(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
1005, 10/F, Tower lll, Enterprise Square, 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong or at the Company's branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents

are received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director at a general meeting, the shareholder should
follow the “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election

as a Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

Unit 1005, 10/F, Tower I

Enterprise Square

9 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay

Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 2155 1688

Facsimile: (853) 2155 9668

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company's secretarial functions are outsourced to external service
provider. Ms. Yam Wai Wah, Jenny, the Financial Controller of the Group,
is the primary contact person of the Company with the external service

provider.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric,
the Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December

2014.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company's constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 56

of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of these movements during the year in the share capital are set

out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company which
is available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December 2014 and 31

December 2013.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and Managing Director)
Ms. Leung Mei Han
Mr. Cheng Kin Chor (appointed on 1 October 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason

Mr. Lau Man Tak

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors retiring
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting will be Mr. Cheng
Kin Chor, Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Lau Man Tak, who being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin and Ms. Leung Mei Han, the Executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 14 December 2012, which may be
terminated by no less than six months’ notice in writing served by either

party on the other.

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor, an Executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1
October 2014, which may be terminated by no less than one month’s

notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 14 December 2012, which may be terminated by one month’s
notice in writing served by the Company on the Independent Non-
executive Directors or by instant notice in writing served by the

Independent Non-executive Directors on the Company.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

BECRBEEN 2

fr EXFTE SN BN EERRBFEAEG LEE
BEEIZEFVEAMNAEETATR —FAEE
OEEMERINKILZRBEAL -

EERBETHRAEREAQFAR
HESEERS - HEARORESZ
EERAR

RZE-—NF+-_A=+—H AREEERK
BITBRABRARB R EERBEER (EH
REFLHEGIEXVED) 2kt - R D
BEETFHEALARRAREES MAEKNE
32FAEF2ERMAZEEIIAR  HIRE
EHBETAESETEFRZORESTR ([1R

TR ) AR
BRRAF]

THEARRRBEMARX S
(IBERPT)) 2 R SORB AT

Long positions i)
Share and underlying shares of the Company AR EZ KRG R IEER G
Number of
Number of underlying
Number of underliylng " shares Approximate
dinary shares shares eld under perce.ntage
or held under performance of the issued
Personal Corporate share option incentive share capital
Name of directors Capacity interests interests scheme agreement Total  of the Company
EERYE REBRE REENRRE BEAE
= e ERE BESERE BERTRAZ
EEpg 5% fAESR NAEH RG#E RG#AE 3t BOBEAL
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin Interest of controlled corporation - 175,126,732 - 600,000,000 775,126,732 50.58%
(Note 1) (Note 2)
ERMmAE REHAE ER (HzE1) (M2)
Ms. Leung Mei Han Interest of controlled corporation - 218,116,000 - - 218,116,000 14.23%
(Note 3)
RERLL REHAE ER (H3E3)
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny Beneficial owner 29,000 - 149 - 29,149 0.00%
2FERE EEZHBA
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason Beneficial owner - - 149 - 149 0.00%
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE

COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long positions (continued)

Share and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were held by Almeco United Group Limited as to
174,496,732 and Titron South China Limited as to 630,000. Each of
Almeco United Group Limited and Titron South China Limited was
owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as to 100% directly and 42.5%
indirectly. Accordingly, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was deemed to be

interested in these 175,126,732 shares by virtue of the SFO.

2. Pursuant to the performance incentive agreement dated 4 March 2011

(the “Performance Incentive Agreement”),

6,720,000,000 shares is potentially entitled by Atlas Medical Limited,
which was 50% owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin and 50% owned by
Mr. Lye Khay Fong respectively. Out of these 6,720,000,000 shares,
20,000,000 shares lapsed on 5 April 2012 according to the terms of the
Performance Incentive Agreement. On 26 March 2013, the Company
effected the capital reorganisation, whereupon (among others) the
number of shares issuable pursuant to the Performance Incentive
Agreement was adjusted from 6,700,000,000 shares to 670,000,000
shares. Out of these 670,000,000 shares, 10,000,000 shares lapsed
on 29 March 2013 and 60,000,000 shares lapsed on 27 March 2014
according to the terms of the Performance Incentive Agreement. Mr. Yip

Wai Lun, Alvin was deemed to be interested in all these shares by virtue

of the SFO.

3. These shares were held by Qshare Holding Limited, which was 100%
owned by Ms. Leung Mei Han. Accordingly, Ms. Leung Mei Han was
deemed to be interested in these 218,116,000 shares by virtue of the

SFO.

a maximum number of
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company had adopted a share option scheme on 12 June 2004 but
the share option scheme expired on 11 June 2014. During the year, the
Company did not adopt any new share option scheme and no share

option had been granted by the Company.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 30

to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year ended 31 December 2014:

B
ARRER-_ZZBNFAAT_BHERMN BB
Bt E) B EER T —HF XA
+— HJER > SR AR ) IR A E R AR
R TRER LR R AE

ARBBREAEERE NG A M BRRM T
30 e

TEREEARRBRERBE_T—HF+=

Outstanding Cancelled/
Date of  Share option at the Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
share option scheme beginning during during during  at the end of Exercise Exercise
Name of participants granted category of the year the year the year the year the year price period
(Notes 1 and 2) HK$
BRE R 8 RER RER RER
SHEERE R HH byl i RAT R RERRH RERTE Ed V3 CERLd TEE TEH
(M1R2) BT
Directors
Bz
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 25.1.2005 2005 149 - - - 149 1.629 25.1.2005 -
RREELE 24.1.2015
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason 25.1.2005 2005 149 - - - 149 1.629 25.1.2005 -
RipmLa 24.1.2015
Total 298 - - - 298
ait
Approximate percentage
to total Company'’s shares in
issue at the end of the year
EARARERERTRE
By BNEIL
Total under the Company's 298 - - - 298 0.00%

share option scheme

KRARBRESBETRE




SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

1. The 2005 share options were granted under the Company’s share

option scheme adopted on 12 June 2004.

2. The closing price of the Company's shares immediately before 25

January 2005, the date of grant of 2005 share options, was HK$0.159.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and none of the Directors
or chief executive, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised

any such right during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” as set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no other contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business, to which the Company, its holding company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the

end of the year or at anytime during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, the Company discloses the following continuing

connected transaction incurred during the year.

On 4 March 2011, the Company, Energy Best Investments Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and Atlas Medical Limited
("Atlas"), entered into the Performance Incentive Agreement (as
amended and restated on 27 July 2011) with the approval of the Board,
pursuant to which it was agreed between the parties that the Company
would make payments to Atlas for services (“Services”, as described
below) provided by Atlas thereunder during the service periods as
referred to in the Performance Incentive Agreement. Atlas is an associate
of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, an Executive Director. More particulars of the
Performance Incentive Agreement were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2011, 21 June 2011, 27 July 2011, 7
October 2011, 25 March 2013 and 28 March 2013 respectively and the

circular of the Company dated 12 August 2011.
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N2 B BhAtlas i B 49 528D 175 55 P it AR 7% HA RS
WIR IR KRB a2 2 RS ([ 225 MR75 ]
AT SR ) Rl Atlasts 3R o Atlas BITE R &
BREEZHMBEA -BHABHNRBMEZE S
BAAMNRARB AR -_T——F—HA_-+1h
B —ZT—FX~"A=-+—H - —FT—FtA
Z+tRE 2+ AtH ZB—=fF=
AZ+HEBRZZE—=F=ZA=Z+ N NBZ21H
RARREMA_Z——F/\ATZAZEK
W% ER -



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Where, “Services” mean the assistance provided by Atlas to the

Company to further develop medical devices business of Titron Group.

(@) Service fee: HK$200,000 in cash per month

(b) Performance bonus: The amount equals to 30% of excess of
the pro forma combined profit before tax
of the Titron Group over HK$10 million for
each of the six financial years ending 31

December 2016.

The performance bonus for each year
shall be satisfied 50% in cash and 50% in
performance incentive shares. The amount
of performance bonus that can be paid in
performance incentive shares is subject to a
cap amount for each of the financial years
ended 31 December 2011 to 31 December
2016.

The Company was obliged to pay Atlas for the Services for the year

ended 31 December 2014 to the extent as described below:

(@) Service fee: The amount of service fee for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK$2,400,000, all of which was voluntarily
waived by Atlas.

(b) Performance bonus: No performance bonus or performance
incentive shares were earned or payable for

the year ended 31 December 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms
available from independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with each
of the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole; and (iv) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped
in accordance with the announcements and circular of the Company as

mentioned above.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions, as set out on pages 44 to 46 of this
annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740, "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and

conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

Interests and short positions of shareholders
discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2014, so far as are known to the Directors, the
shareholders of the Company (other than Directors or the chief
executives of the Company), who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO, or had otherwise notified the Company were as follows:

Directors’ Report
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Long positions L3y
Shares and underlying shares of the Company EREARGREER G
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of the issued
issued ordinary underlying share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
ERAF
BEERT 2RITREAZ
BRREE/#E 5t ZERYE HEHRBRAHA BAES
(HEE)
Atlas Medical Limited Beneficial owner - 600,000,000 39.15%
(Note 2)
EmEBA (PiF3E2)
Lye Khay Fong Interest of controlled corporation - 600,000,000 39.15%
(Note 3)
BHT 8 VNG £ (PH3E3)
Qshare Holding Limited Beneficial owner 218,116,000 - 14.23%
(Note 4)
EnEBA (Kizxa)

B VI BT HEHEHES

N
N



AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2014

IS
(00}

Directors’ Report

EEEHS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

FERRREMALREQF
BROKEBERD 2EERKXR

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE (#)
COMPANY (continued)
Long positions (continued) 15 -NE )
Shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued) KRR REER G (&)
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of the issued
issued ordinary underlying share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
HARQR
BHEERT BRITRAZ
BRREE/HE 54 EZERYE HERBRGHA BOBAL
(MEE)
Almeco United Group Limited Beneficial owner 174,496,732 - 11.39%
(Note 5)
EEREBERAH ERBEEA (P3E5)
Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 82,180,000 - 5.36%
("Four Seas") (Note 6)
mMEEER A ([HEM]) EE VNG £ (PftzE6)
Tai Tak Fung ("Mr. Tai") Interest of controlled corporation 82,180,000 - 5.36%
(Note 6)
HEY ([HEE]) REHAE 2 Ew (Pft5Ee6)
Beneficial owner 8,710,000 - 0.57%
EmBEEA
Wu Mei Yung (“Ms. Wu") Interest in spouse 90,890,000 - 5.93%
(Note 7)
tAER ([#4L]) [ (PH3E7)
Notes: Bt 5

1. The calculation of percentage figures is based on the relevant number of

shares as a percentage of the number of shares of the Company in issue

as at 31 December 2014.

2. These 600,000,000 underlying shares are the maximum number of

shares potentially entitled by Atlas Medical Limited as at 31 December

2014, pursuant to the Performance Incentive Agreement.

1. BALBFHREBEEBRMEEMEALQH
RZZB-—HF+TZA=+—RAZE#HTRG
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2. REEOZEBRHZ

£600,000,0000% 48 74 i%
15 A Atlas Medical Limitedid =& — M E+ =
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Long positions (continued)

Shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Directors’ Report
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These 600,000,000 underlying shares refer to the same parcel of shares
in note 2 above. Atlas Medical Limited was 50% owned by Mr. Lye
Khay Fong and 50% owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin respectively.
Accordingly, Mr. Lye Khay Fong was deemed to be interested in these

600,000,000 underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.

Qshare Holding Limited was 100% owned by Ms. Leung Mei Han, an

Executive Director.

Almeco United Group Limited was 100% directly owned by Mr. Yip Wai

Lun, Alvin, an Executive Director.

These shares were held by Ever Media Limited, which is indirectly
wholly-owned by Four Seas. Four Seas is indirect owned by Mr. Tai.
Accordingly, Mr. Tai was deemed to be interested in these 82,180,000
shares by virtue of the SFO.

These shares were held by Ever Media Limited as to 82,180,000 shares,
refer to the same parcel of shares in note 6 above, and Mr. Tai as to
8,710,000 shares. Mr. Tai is the spouse of Ms. Wu. Accordingly, Ms. Wu
is deemed to be interested in the 90,890,000 shares by virtue of the
SFO.
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TEEEE-

EXREEARAFANTEEEEREL
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Z 5 M) B Ever Media Limited#5 7% » M Ever
Media Limited AP E 2 & B - N B
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B 5 A 148 A 7R 7%82,180,000/% I 1 P A
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S o
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BB Ft RIBEFREE G Akt
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Long positions (continued)
Shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31

December 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 35% of the Group’s
consolidated turnover and aggregate turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 93% of the

Group's consolidated turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 66% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 94% of the
Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in any of the

five largest customers or suppliers.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent

Non-executive Directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company had adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note

30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 37 of this annual

report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (Chairman), Mr. Leung Ka
Kui, Johnny and Mr. Lau Man Tak. The Audit Committee has reviewed
with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited results for the year ended 31

December 2014.

Directors’ Report
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2014.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after 31 December 2014 of the Group

are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were

audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general

meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yip Wai Lun, Alvin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United
Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 56 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BB E

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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BYRBMKRE

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan Russell Leong

Practising Certificate Number P03246

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AREEHERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZE—WFE+-F=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-MmF —E—=F
B 5 FET FHET

Turnover B 6,7 76,470 89,006
Cost of sales $HE KA (70,507) (75,032)
Gross profit EAN 5,963 13,974
Other income H b Yz 8 1,316 8,906
Distribution costs 53 88 B AR (3,256) (4,443)
Administrative expenses 1TH R X (33,489) (48,920)
Impairment losses and write offs VEREN SR W58 €is 10 (13,981) (40,981)
Loss on change in fair value of @R EREZ AR BEZEEEE

convertible notes 33 (4,005) (1,597)
Finance costs B 7% & A 9 (835) (1,693)
Loss before income tax expense BRETEHBEXAIER 11 (48,287) (74,754)
Income tax credit FrigfiE e 12 - 141
Loss for the year FEEE (48,287) (74,613)
Other comprehensive income HitZEEA
ltems that may be reclassified HEgrnEnsBziEssAEE

subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBREEZERZR

translation of foreign operations (214) 388
Reclassification adjustment for EBEEBEETIEEZ

amounts transferred to BN EAR

profit or loss

— release of translation NGNS VNGIE: € SRR

reserve upon deregistration of o2 PR B 16
a subsidiary 9) -

Other comprehensive income FREMEERA - NBRTIE

for the year, net of tax (223) 388
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHEBALRE

for the year (48,510) (74,225)
Loss for the year attributable to KAREBEABRLFEES

owners of the Company 13 (48,287) (74,613)
Total comprehensive income AATBEEAEGRZEAWRALLE

attributable to owners of

the Company (48,510) (74,255)
Loss per share BREE 14

Basic N HK(4.12) cents | HK(8.52) cents %1l

Diluted s N/A TER N/A 7~ i@ A




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A PR R R

As at 31 December 2014 R=-F—M#E+=-F=+—A

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-—mF —E=F
B = FET FAET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 17 3,169 6,009
Goodwill [EES 18 - 11,836
3,169 17,845

Current assets REBEE
Inventories 75 19 1,798 6,952
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e U 58 20 12,675 13,430
Tax recoverable EIE TR 175 291
Pledged time deposits EEMEBREFHR 21 1,546 3,405
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 21 62,580 4,576
78,774 28,654
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENKIA 22 31,572 31,513
Bank and other borrowings HITREMEE 23 2,169 16,064
Amount due to a director Bt EEHE 24 = 12,150
Obligation under a finance lease RE R EAE 25 16 204
Convertible notes IR &8 33 = 16,112
33,757 76,043
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(AE)FE 45,017 (47,389)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABES 48,186 (29,544)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2014 R=-F—HFE+=F=+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-—mF —E=F
B = FET FAET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligation under a finance lease mEHEAE 25 - 16
Convertible notes Al AR E iR 33 — 7,113
- 7,129
Net assets/(liabilities) EEFE/(AEFH) 48,186 (36,673)

EQUITY fEn

Share capital &N 27 15,324 8,758
Reserves #iE 32,862 (45,431)
Total equity/(Capital deficiency) EREBE (BREH) 48,186 (36,673)

Yip Wai Lun, Alvin
ERfH
Director

EF

On behalf of the Board
REREFZ

Leung Mei Han
REM
Director

EF



Statement of Financial Position

B 5 IR 3=

As at 31 December 2014 R=-F—M#E+=-F=+—A

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-—mF —E=F
B = FET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A NGIPA £ 31 1 -
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H{th W SRR 20 595 604
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE WS B /B A B3R T8 31 28,857 37,542
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 21 29,653 480
59,105 38,626
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H g < 5108 22 7,545 7,766
Other borrowings HEEE 23 = 10,000
Amount due to a director BN EERIE 24 = 12,150
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1B /B 2 R 3R - 1
Convertible notes Al A TR 33 - 16,112
7,545 46,029
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(BE)FH 51,560 (7,403)
Non-current liability kREBEME
Convertible notes Al R =R 33 — 7,113
Net assets/(liabilities) EEFE/(AEFH) 51,561 (14,516)
EQUITY EE
Share capital [N 27 15,324 8,758
Reserves 1 28 36,237 (23,274)
Total equity/(Capital deficiency) ERBAE (BREH) 51,561 (14,516)

On behalf of the Board

KREFE
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin Leung Mei Han
ERfH REH
Director Director
BF 3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERaBER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZF—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

Share Share Capital Translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Notes a & ¢) (Notes b & ¢) (Note ¢) (Note ¢)
RA& RGEE EN-1 ENHE 2itER st
FET FEL TiER TR TET FHEL
(M#Fake) (MEbRke) (MEc) (B #Ec)
As at 1 January 2013 RZZ—=%—F—H 87,582 223,828 1,941 1,426 (277,225) 37,552
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (74,613) (74,613)
Other comprehensive income FREMPERA:
for the year:
Exchange differences arising BEBIEBELZ
on translation of foreign EHER
operations - - - 388 - 388
Total comprehensive income FANZERAEE
for the year - - - 388 (74,613) (74,225)
Equity-settled share-based PR A S E R B
transactions ERIR5
- lapse of options granted to -KTEEZ
employees iR R R A - - (1,940) - 1,940 -
Capital reduction (Note 27) BRAEIR (i FE27) (78,824) (223,828) - - 302,652 -
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-A=+-H 8,758 - 1 1,814 (47,246) (36,673)




Consolidated Statement of Chan

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_—%

- ges in E%;JJ:%

—HEFZA=1+—HIEFE

Share Share Capital Translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Notesa &c) (Notesb &) (Note ¢) (Note ¢)
R R4 & E ERGE EXGE it ER @t
FA% FA% A% TER A% FA%
(Hzake) (F&EbRKe) (KizEc) (HtzEc)

As at 1 January 2014 RZE-MFE-A—H 8,758 - 1 1,814 (47,246) (36,673)

Loss for the year FEES - - - - (48,287) (48,287)

Other comprehensive income FREMEERA:

for the year:
Exchange differences arising BREBINEBEEZ
on translation of foreign EHESR
operations - - - (214) - (214)
Reclassification adjustment for BRERRTZ
amounts transferred to SEIENHEH
profit or loss
- release of translation reserve SNIEUNSIE: 6
upon deregistration of i & B
a subsidiary i e - - - (9) = (9)
Total comprehensive income FRAZEKALE
for the year - - - (223) (48,287) (48,510)
Issue of shares on conversion of Bt X RAIBRKEE
convertible notes (Note 33) BTl (HE33) 801 26,429 = = = 27,230
Issue of shares upon placing REERETRN
(Note 27) (BaE27) 5,765 104,653 - - - 110,418
Shares issue expenses (Note 27)  #1TH (D F X (M5F27) - (4,279) - - - (4,279)
As at 31 December 2014 —mE
+-A=+—H 15,324 126,803 1 1,591 (95,533) 48,186

Notes: Bt 5

a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of a) RPN EERZEAZERE—N/\—F27
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. EBAOGIRE -

b) At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the capital reserve comprises the b) R-ZE—NFE-_ZT—=F+_A=+—H"
fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share ERFEBERES ARG & EBE AR MR
options granted to directors and employees of the Company recognised Mzt HE CGE—FFBHINGEE B
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based MEMTA ERETARREEREEZR
payments as further detailed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial TEERECERIEHEE ZAAEBE.
statements.

c) These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves with a ¢ ZEHEFLERGEATBERRNEAZEN

total credit balance of HK$32,862,000 (2013: total debit balance of

HK$45,431,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

BARE4A%E 532,862,000 T (—E—=4F: {&
A BRMEFEAS,431,00008 T ) 2R A B

B VI BT HENEHES
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZE—WFE+-F=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—F-—mF —E=F
B 5 FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities R A S & EZH 2 REFKE
Loss before income tax B BT 15 F4 Al B 18 (48,287) (74,754)
Adjustments for: M TIIEBEL 2 A%
Depreciation for property, ME - BEREBTE
plant and equipment 17 2,715 6,655
Loss on change in fair value of MRERZ ANBEZHERE
convertible notes 33 4,005 1,597
Impairment loss on property, M- BEREEREERE
plant and equipment 10 2,069 5,679
Impairment loss on goodwill BB R EEE 10 11,836 34,071
Write off of inventories HEFE 19 1,247 -
Impairment loss on and write off of 5 k& b B FIBREE B
trade and other receivables K 88 10 76 1,231
Interest income FLEWA 8 (58) (39)
Interest expenses FEREZ 9 816 1,674
Finance charges on obligation MEREREZVHER
under a finance lease 9 19 19
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries  [ff & 2 51 #8457+ it dg 25 8 - (4,384)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME WFE R&ERE
plant and equipment 8 (691) (371)
Forfeiture of deposit paid for new BB RN REZ N 2&E
share subscription - (3,740)
Operating loss before working BEESRBAZKEER
capital changes (26,253) (32,362)
Decrease in inventories FER L 3,376 728
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I Hth & YR IE R
receivables 936 9,880
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 I H th fE 1 518
other payables g,/ i) 76 (663)
Cash used in operations KETHHHAES (21,865) (22,417)
Hong Kong and PRC tax paid ENEELRELIE - (2)
Hong Kong and PRC tax refund REEERPEBIE 116 562
Net cash used in operating activities — AX &5 8B H 2 H % F5E (21,749) (21,857)
Cash flows from investing activities REREEH 2 REHRE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEREEMERE
plant and equipment 1,332 3,621
Decrease in pledged time deposits 2 1# E B 5OR 1,823 107
Interest received 2 H B 58 39
Payment for the purchase of property, BEW¥  ME MR ENK
plant and equipment 17 (2,585) (3,954)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEESL"(BH)ZHEFE
investing activities 628 (187)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SEBHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - E—E+ -F=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-—mF —E=F
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Cash flows from financing activities REREFEH 2R ERE
New bank and other MgRITRHEMBEE
borrowings raised - 10,000
Repayments of bank and EERITRHMEES
other borrowings (13,329) (4,116)
Repayments of obligation under BEEMEMEAE
a finance lease (204) (204)
Interest paid 2AHE (816) (1,674)
Finance charges paid on obligation HREHEAEDNCVBER
under a finance lease (19) (19)
Advance from a director KEEFEZHHK 3,650 8,150
Repayments of amount due to BEENEERIE
a director (15,800) -
Deposit received for new share MR OREMMR RS
subscription - 3,740
Proceeds from placing of shares B & AR 9 BT 18 58 27 110,418 -
Expenses paid for placing shares Bl 5 B 10 B 2 27 (4,279) -
Net cash generated from FEZEESE R T FHE
financing activities 79,621 15,877
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRELEEY
and cash equivalents #in, CRd)FEE 58,500 (6,167)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzRERELEEY
1 January 4,010 10,163
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXEHHRERESEEYZE
cash and cash equivalents 70 14
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=ZA=+—-Bx2
31 December RERREZEEY 62,580 4,010
Represented by: B
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEY 21 62,580 4,576
Bank overdraft RITHEY 23 - (566)
62,580 4,010
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GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 November 1996. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate information” section

to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and

sale of medical devices and plastic moulding products.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2014

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new amendments and interpretation to HKFRSs
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for

the annual period beginning on 1 January 2014:

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

2. RMERMBREER ([FE
MBHREEA]) @

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective (a) HMFT BBITEBHK

1 January 2014 (continued)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has no material effect on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current year or the

disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.

Impact of the application of Amendments
to HKAS 32 - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding
appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” and when
a gross settlement mechanism is considered equivalent to net

settlement. The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on the
consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have

any offsetting arrangements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not

yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010 —
2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011 —
2013 Cycle!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012 —
2014 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions

occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018
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2. RMNEBNBREEL ([EHE
MBHREEA]D) 2
(b) EREEMERRERZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured at
fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all
financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk

management activities in financial statements.
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2. RMNEBNBREEL ([EHE
MBHREEA]) #)
(b) EREEMERRERZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
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have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and

related interpretations.
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2. RMNEBNBREEL ([EHE
MBHREEA]) #)
(b) EREEMERRERZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to

revenue recognition:

Step 1: lIdentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance

obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation

is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the

qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these pronouncements. The directors so far
concluded that the application of these new pronouncements
will have no material impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 159 have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value. The measurement bases are
fully explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis which assumes the realisation of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business
notwithstanding that the Group has continuously incurred
significant loss of HK$48,287,000 (2013: HK$74,613,000)
for the year and the net cash outflow from operation of
HK$21,865,000 (2013: HK$22,417,000).

Notwithstanding these conditions, the going concern basis has
been adopted on the basis set out below:

(i)  The Group has strong cash position with cash and bank
balances of HK$62,580,000 (2013: HK$4,576,000) and
bank and other borrowings of HK$2,169,000 (2013:
HK$16,064,000) as at 31 December 2014. This is
mainly attributable to the completion of three placing
of shares during the year which raised net proceeds of
HK$106,139,000 after share issue expenses. Accordingly,
the Group does not have any immediate liquidity issues
and will be able to finance its operations and meet its
commitments and obligations with the existing funds on
hand.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (continued)

(if)

Looking forward, management plans to improve the

Group's financial performance by:

(a)

Taking steps to reduce discretionary expenses and

administrative costs;

Cessation of the operation of manufacture and sale
of plastic moulding products as detailed in Note
40(a), which incurred significant losses in the current
and past years by the end of the first quarter of
2015; and

Exploring new business which will provide a
growing and recurring source of income. In fact,
new businesses in human resources and public
relation services have been set up subsequent to the
reporting date already in this respect as detailed in

Note 40(b).

The directors consider the cessation of operation of

manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products is in the

best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The

directors are confident these measures will improve the

financial performance of the Group, provide sufficient liquidity

to enable the Group to meet its commitments and obligations

as and when they fall due and add to shareholders’ value.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a

going concern basis.
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3. RBEE &)
(c) HEER 2RI E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c) Functional and presentation currency

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") of which the functional currency
is Renminbi ("RMB"), the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which

is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

PR E ARSRE ([RE]) KL
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., TESTHHEHME

POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation 4.1 mEEHXE
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The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date

fair value.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 4.1 ZEEH%E &)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities

were disposed of.

4.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHEME )

POLICIES (continued)
4.3 Goodwill 438

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate of
consideration transferred over the fair value of identifiable

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment loss. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

acquisition.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.

4.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

WE—REBMELE ZHBNTENK
(B EREARBEEMKEL
ABERNEE BERIARBEZAR
BE D) HER-

EEERAMBR R EREE 3R
BARAME BEDRAORIAEE
BEEBEHESRBB 2 BRBEDZ &
ZHeELBEN ([ReELEM])
FREELEEMAR -

BEESEREBZREELEUEEF
ETEENRN INEPFRBREM
] BE H 3R R0 BB 1R B 4R K ORI A o 11
ReEtBEu s Oe@m IO RNER
H{E AR EERE LD KN DD
EEBN2ENAECREE BiZ
BUASEERAEZLIDEES
Lz HMEE - EREEZREEE
BEENESRER AEBERZRE
BETSEREREBED -

REEHBRSELENUR EEE
HEBRSREEREmE 2GR

A4 YE- -BERZE

M B KRB TR BT
ENZFRERBEYK-

BERWEZEFHE BEREE KA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—E+-_F=1+—HALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHEME )

POLICIES (continued)
AAME - BEREE #)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance,
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.

4.5 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to

the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of

the lease.

4.6 Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was acquired.
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase
or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace

concerned.
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POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued) 4.6 BT H ()

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of goods
and services to customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Impairment for loans and receivables

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that loans and
receivables are impaired. Loans and receivables are impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the assets and that events has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the loans and receivables that can be

reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s

financial difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Financial assets (continued)
Impairment for loans and receivables (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and directly
reduces the carrying amount of loans and receivables when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, the carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset. Financial assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued) 46 B T H (#)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for

trading are recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative

is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to

be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

4.6 Financial instruments (continued) 46 I T H ()
Financial liabilities (continued) BBEE (&)
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4.6 Financial instruments (continued) 4.6 BT H ()

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, bank and other borrowings, amount due to a
director and obligation under a finance lease are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or

loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit or

loss

Convertible notes that will or may not be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed amount of the
Company’s own equity instruments are accounted as financial
liabilities with embedded derivatives. The conversion option
derivatives embedded in a financial instrument are treated
as separate derivatives. At the date of issue, the conversion
option derivative is recognised at fair value. Any excess of
proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative

component is recognised as liability.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, until extinguished on conversion or
maturity. The conversion option derivative is measured at fair

value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Convertible notes (continued)

Convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit or

Joss (continued)

However, where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss if it
satisfies the criteria as set out in the initial recognition policy
of “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”
above in accordance with HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement”.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the entire designated
convertible notes classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability components in proportion to

the allocation of the proceeds.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4.6 Financial instruments (continued) 4.6 I T H ()

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with

HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised

in profit or loss for the year.

4.7 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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4.8 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term

deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

4.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and

the title is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

4,10 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred

tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of reporting period.
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4.10 Income taxes (continued) A0 FR B % (&)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

4.11 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.
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4.1 Foreign currency (continued)
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as translation reserve. Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as

translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the translation reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to

profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in the translation reserve.
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POLICIES (continued)

4.12Employee benefits L12EEREF

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the

year when the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services are

rendered by the employees.

4.13 Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve with equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using Black-Scholes model, taking into accounts the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options will

vest.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHEME »)

POLICIES (continued)
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4.13 Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses quality for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that

relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
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amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to

retained profits/accumulated losses).

4.14Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHREME &)

POLICIES (continued)
LA H M EERE (2

4.14Impairment of other assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

4.15Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

4.16 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably

estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.17 Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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(iii)

(iv)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHEME »)

POLICIES (continued)
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(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

4.18 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision-maker i.e. the most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—NE+-_FA=1+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.19 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group's business that has been disposed
of or is classified as held for sale, which represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations of

the Group.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned, in
which case it is classified as a discontinued operation in the

period in which the abandonment occurs.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of profit and loss account,
which comprises the post-tax profit or loss for the discontinued

operation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.
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Bt 35 SRR Y &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.

Assessment of impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of
assets. When an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed
in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates and assumptions about future events, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making these key estimates and judgements, the directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on the market
condition existing at the reporting dates and appropriate market

and discount rates.

These estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and

actual transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently the related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment. Management will increase the depreciation charges
when useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review may result in a change
in useful lives and therefore the depreciation expenses in future

years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the trade and other receivables and on management'’s
estimation. A considerable amount of estimation is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these trade and other
receivables. Factors considered include the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

impairment may be required.

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and identifies the
slow-moving inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. In addition, the Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the end of each

reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 4.3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances, the
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk

factors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products and
services and requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable

segments:

(1)  Manufacture and sale of medical devices products; and

(2) Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products*.

* This operating segment will cease operation at the end of the first

quarter of 2015. Further details are set out in Note 40(a).

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar products. Central
revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments
as they are not included in the measure of the segments’ profit that
is used by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of

segment performance.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Business segments

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - E—HE+-F=1+—HIFE

6. DEHE (&)
(a) ¥ T

BE-_ZE-WNE+-A=+—-HL

FE

Manufacture Manufacture

and sale of and sale of

medical plastic

devices moulding
products products Total

BERHEE BERHEE
BEIBED PREAER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET
Revenue from external customers & & JMNE8E 5 U A 26,537 49,933 76,470
Reportable segment revenue BIEERoR N 26,537 49,933 76,470
Reportable segment loss Al 3RE o EbE 1R (4,732) (13,195) (17,927)
Interest income F B U A - 56 56
Depreciation e (1,208) (322) (1,530)

Gain on disposal of property, LEME BE&

plant and equipment HE M= 50 641 691
Reportable segment assets AREDFEE 5,460 10,381 15,841
Addition to non-current assets RNEIIFTBDEE 2,382 203 2,585
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 5,483 9,452 14,935
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEHE (&)
(a) £ #)
B -_Z2—=%+-_A=+—81

(a) Business segments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Manufacture

FE

Manufacture

and sale of and sale of

medical plastic

devices moulding
products products Total

BENHE BEREE
BEEREEM BREAER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
Revenue from external customers 2R & 5MNBEFUA 24,684 64,322 89,006
Reportable segment revenue BIEER N 24,684 64,322 89,006
Reportable segment loss AIE D EEE (6,014) (9,687) (15,701)
Interest income F B WA - 38 38
Depreciation e (1,109) (4,310) (5,419)

Gain on disposal of property, LEME BE&

plant and equipment B 1 380 381
Trade receivables write off E 5 W SRIE M A - (174) (174)
Reportable segment assets AREDEEE 18,914 16,554 35,468
Addition to non-current assets NEERBEE 251 1,922 2,173
Reportable segment liabilities AmED B E 2,883 11,786 14,669
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHEZ-F—NF+=-F=+—HULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEBERE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) IHREIHWRA -BER -EE
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEZHIER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ZE-NFE —E—=F
FET FET
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue BESEER- 3 ON 76,470 89,006
Loss before income tax expense MRS HEXAER
Reportable segment loss AlsRE D EL AR (17,927) (15,701)
Loss on change in fair value of AHMEREZ AR BEZHER
convertible notes (4,005) (1,597)
Impairment losses and write offs VRN SR 5E i (13,981) (40,981)
Finance costs BEER (835) (1,693)
Unallocated corporate income RoBEEERA 2 8,246
Unallocated corporate expenses APBEEERY (11,541) (23,028)
Consolidated loss before income BRAFBHEXAGEAER
tax expense (48,287) (74,754)
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 15,841 35,468
Pledged time deposits BEE A EHER 1,546 3,405
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 62,580 4,576
Unallocated corporate assets RO EEE 1,976 3,050
Consolidated total assets RABEE 81,943 46,499
Liabilities =
Segment liabilities DEEE 14,935 14,669
Bank and other borrowings HITREMEE 2,169 16,064
Amount due to a director JEREERIA - 12,150
Amounts due to related parties FERTREE AR08 9,200 9,200
Convertible notes AR R g - 23,225
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEEEARE 7,453 7,864
Consolidated total liabilities LeERaE 33,757 83,172
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(c)

revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment loss represents the loss attributable to
each segment without allocation of corporate administrative
expenses, loss on changes in fair value of convertible notes,
impairment losses and write offs, finance costs, corporate
directors’ emoluments, corporate interest income and income
tax credit. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision-maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than

pledged time deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than bank and other borrowings, amount due to a director,

amounts due to related parties and convertible notes.

Geographic information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the non-current assets is based on the physical and

operating location of the assets.

The Group's operations and workforce are mainly located in

the PRC (country of domicile), including Hong Kong.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEEE (&)
(c) Geographic information (continued) (c) HEER (&)
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's TREINAEFERBEINLE S 2 WA
revenue from external customers. DT
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-MmF —E—=F
FHERT FHET
Asia CER
— PRC including Hong Kong —HE(BEEE) 227 238
- other region — H i [= 28,795 39,674
Europe H 16,880 10,967
North and South America B EL 30,568 38,127
76,470 89,006
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's non- TEREINAEEERBEEZ Do
current assets.
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
—F-—mF —EF=F
FHExT FHT
Asia M
- PRC including Hong Kong —HE(BFEEE) 3,169 17,845
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEEE (&)
(c) Geographic information (continued) (c) HEER (&)
Information about major customers FTEEFEN
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total RKEERAEEHEAEBRI0%Z
sales of the Group are set out below: P ZWAER T
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ImF —E-=F
FHR FB
Customer A — manufacture and EPA-RERHEBRREER
sale of medical devices products 26,537 24,684
Customer B — manufacture and EPB-RERHEBRBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 14,665 22,992
Customer C — manufacture and BEPC-RERFEELEBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 12,374 17,022
Customer D — manufacture and EFPD-HERHELBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 11,376 -

The percentage of total revenue on major customers is set out FEFRPRBARAZAES LETIW
below: Ik
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—s-me —E-=f
Customer A — manufacture and BEPA-REREEEERRBEER
sale of medical devices products 35% 28%
Customer B — manufacture and EPB-HERHEEEBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 19% 26%
Customer C — manufacture and BERFC-HERHEEBEREAER
sale of plastic moulding products 16% 19%
Customer D — manufacture and EPD-RERKEELREAER
sale of plastic moulding products 15% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHEZ-F—NF+=-F=+—HULFE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of

value-added tax, returns, rebates and trade discounts.

OTHER INCOME

Analysis of the Group's other income recognised during the year is

as follows:

7. E¥EEE

WAIREHBER R BHRE ST
BRZEEEMBERFE
Hitb e 25

RAEENBERY AEERBREH T
IR

The Group
AEE

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

—F-—@mF —E-=F

FHR FAT

Exchange gain, net e s - 5 221 95

Interest income FEWA 58 39

Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries B /&8 2% ] HAEE B M M s - 4,384

Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BE KR ERE

plant and equipment 691 371
Gain arising from forfeiture of deposit paid R UFL A% REE T 2 L& dkzs

for new share subscription (Note 39) (FF3E39) - 3,740

Others HAb 346 277

1,316 8,906

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEH
The Group
EEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE =%
FHERT FHT
Interest on bank and other borrowings BARAFRNEBHEEZRITR
wholly repayable within five years H b {8 &8 816 1,674
Finance charge on obligation under MEHERECVMBEBER
finance leases 19 19
835 1,693
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND WRITE OFFS 10. 8 1B 5 18 I 85
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-mE ZE=F
FHET FHET
Impairment loss on property, ME- -BEREHEZ
plant and equipment (Note 17) BEEBE (MFE17) 2,069 5,679
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 18) BB ZMEEE (H:E18) 11,836 34,071
Trade receivables written off B 5 P& WK IE 8 - 174
Impairment loss on other deposits, Hithiz @ AR 08 KA
prepayments and other receivables FEMF IR 2 BB B 1B
(Note 20) (KF3E20) 4 1,057
Other deposits, prepayments and Hibize B RBEREAM
other receivables written off (Note 20) JE U R IE 8 (PR RE20) 72 -
13,981 40,981
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mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—NE+-_FA=1+—HLFE

11.LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

The Group's loss before income tax expense is arrived at after

BR P 15 Bi B 32 AT &5 18
AR EE 2 B BB X TS RE B TSI

charging: BIA:
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-—HmF —F =%
FERT FHT
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXRA(REESHS)
emoluments)
— Contribution to defined contribution — RE HFGRIRET B
retirement plan (Note 29) (M7E29) 652 914
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —He IENEMEF 21,370 33,562
22,022 34,476
Depreciation of property, M- -BERRBTE
plant and equipment
- Owned —B& 2,511 6,451
— Held under a finance lease —EREHERE 204 204
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 730 730
Operating lease charges in respect of FEMEZREHEER
properties 2,846 4,132
Write-off of inventories* (Note 19) MiEFE* (M:E19) 1,247 -
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses MR A X 2 F SR A 57,047 52,794

* Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

* GIAEERERBE R [HEXA
Ao
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12.FhiBHER
The Group
EEE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE =%
FHERT FHT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVHARL 1B — BB SR
— Over provision in respect of prior year —BEFEBEEE - (41)

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BVHAREIE — R Bl (D ZEFR1S B

— Tax for the year — REZRIAE
Deferred tax (Note 26) EERLIE (M 5E26)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profits for both years.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as no estimated
assessable profits were derived by the Group in Hong Kong for the

years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the

EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

- (102)

= (141)

BFRMEH IR ZMIEFE 2 Gt R
2 16.5% 5 & o

HRBE-_Z—MER_Z—=F+_AH
ST -BUEFE AEEVEREE B
HETERBUERN R LBIELBAFNER
B

RIB(PEARKMBEREREHE)
(IEEMERE]) REEMGRIABRK
Bl PEMBRARNZMEFE 2HER
25% -



12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g;-:A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_—%

12.FTEHIERE 2
AEEFERECREASEKSR B

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before income tax expense per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Bt 35 SRR MY &

—AFE+ZA=+—-HIFE

FERE R A EE RN T

The Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-IF —z—=
FHR FBT
Loss before income tax expense B P15 B B 2 R &S 18 (48,287) (74,754)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to BHEBAEER
the jurisdiction concerned BABEFE A (8,591) (12,438)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR MBI HAEZ 2 BB 2
for tax purpose 5,216 8,329
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BERMBAZBBZE
for tax purpose (172) (1,889)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIBEBE R BTE 3,541 6,219
Tax effect of deductible temporary RAERAUMAERER Y
differences not recognised MR 6 (835)
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFE2BBREE - (41)
Reversal of tax benefits arising from HBTFERRVIEEE
tax losses recognised in previous years i ¥ H 56 18 | %5 8 3l
(Note 26) (Pff5E26) - 514
Income tax credit g e = (1417)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss for the year attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$48,287,000 (2013: HK$74,613,000), a loss of
HK$67,292,000 (2013: HK$46,285,000) has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

WARB R ANE

48,287,000/ 0 (—Z&F—
T 67,292,000 T (=

B.ALXAEEABRLFESE

HFEEHEAER
=4 :74,613,000
_Eﬂg .

46,285,000/ 7T ) Z BB E A AR &) B 75 3

RPRIE -

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

14.LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$48,287,000
(2013: HK$74,613,000) and the weighted average of
1,171,713,072 (2013: 875,823,986) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share has been presented because there
was no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Company’s outstanding share options as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 and outstanding convertible notes as at 31
December 2013 were not taken into account as both had an
anti-dilutive effect for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

14. BREE

(a)

(b)

BREXNEE

BREABEDIREAAREEA
FE {5 /5 1848,287,0008 0 (Z T — =
% :74,613,00087T) RERNE #EITE
AR N5 $01,171,713,0720% (=
T — =4 :875,823,986/% )5t & -

TREEER
AREHE-T-MFR-F-=%
+ZAEt-BLEREREEGY
EEREEBR - FE L2 SR
B

=t HERRTEZBRERNR-F
—=F T+ A=+—BRERTEZA
mERE REARMESAEREE
fER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—E—HE+ A =1+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 15.EEM &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2013: five) BfSEN AR (ZE—ZF AR)ES
directors were as follows: FEZHemT:
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z—NF+-A=+—HLFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FER
EEHme BEMF & RIRFHEIHR “at
TERT FTERT FHERT TER
Executive Directors HITES
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin B - 3,625 32 3,657
Leung Mei Han 2 X1 - 300 15 315
Cheng Kin Chor (appointed on BERL (R=ZT—NF
1 October 2014) TA—HEZMF) - 168 4 172
Independent Non-executive BYHTES
Directors
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2KE 100 - - 100
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason B 55 34 100 - = 100
Lau Man Tak 2= 100 - - 100
Total #at 300 4,093 51 4,444
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 15.EEM <€ »)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-_Z—=%+-_A=1+—BIFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e RER
EE0e ERIEES RGBT Bt
FET FET FAT FHT
Executive Directors HITES
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin B - 5,807 30 5,837
Leung Mei Han 2E 1 - 2,775 15 2,790
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 25 100 - - 100
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason B 85 34 100 - - 100
Lau Man Tak Fx 100 - - 100
Total it 300 8,582 45 8,927

During both years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for

loss of office.

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31

December 2014 (2013: Nil).

RBEZE_ZE—NFR_T-—Z=ZF+_A
ST —HLERBEFERN AEEW EAE
EXNERBMS - fEAREIMAZR SR
RINAZR S B 2 B sk R BB A (2 -

REZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLF
E BEEEREAEHNe (Z2—=F:

&) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—NE+-_FA=1+—HLFE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2013: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure in Note 15 above. The emoluments

of the remaining four individuals (2013: three individuals) were as

16. EEM <

AEBEREGESFTMNIALTH BF—F
(ZE—=ZF MB)ARAEE ZE5ESF
ZWE R EXHEISHE - BT NE AL
(ZE—=F:=FAD)zBewT:

follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

—2-mEF —F—=

FET FAT
Salaries and other emoluments FehkEMEE 2,649 4,621
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 67 29
2,716 4,650

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

WE M RFTHNEER :

2014 2013
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals

—E-mEg —F-=
A A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/%& 7 £1,500,0007% 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 £2,500,0007% 7T = 1

During both years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group as compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of two senior management personnel have been
disclosed in the above table of the five highest paid individuals

except for one whose remuneration falls within the following band.

REBEZE_ZE-—NMEFR_ZT—=F1T=A
ST —BUEREFER  KAEBE WS
FAMeTFREE=FM AL (BHEE
B) EREEMAREESIRMAREE
W2 BB R BB 8 o

B—R2FMOFTIREZALIN WS
SREBABZHFEHORN LA RZSH
AL ZHIRABEE-

2014 2013

Number of Number of

individuals Individuals

—E-ImF —E—=F

A A#

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE

17. 0% BERRE-FEE

GROUP
Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and and office Motor
machinery equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B -EER
BERKE BORE RE @it
THT FTHT TR THx
Cost
At 1 January 2013 19,694 4,197 2,991 26,882
Exchange adjustment 70 2 - 72
Addition at cost 2,044 3 1,907 3,954
Disposals (3,972) (48) - (4,020)
Written off - (1,136) - (1,136)
At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014 +ZA=Z+-Hk
—Z-mF—R—H 17,836 3,018 4,898 25,752
Addition at cost AE (REAE) 590 64 1,931 2,585
Disposals (7,078) (420) (985) (8,483)
Written off - (177) - (177)
At 31 December 2014 R=EB-OF+=A=+-H 11,348 2,485 5,844 19,677
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—NE+-_FA=1+—HLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE 17.9% BERRE-—LTEE

GROUP (continued) (%)
Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and and office Motor
machinery equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BR-RER
BER#E WARE RE @t
TR TR FAR FhR
Accumulated depreciation and ZAFEREE
impairment
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—H—H 5,585 2,890 831 9,306
Exchange adjustment B 5 5% 5 5 (1) 9
Depreciation e 4,465 762 1,428 6,655
Impairment loss (Note 10) BEER (HF10) 5,679 - - 5,679
Disposals & (741) (29) - (770)
Written off i - (1,136) - (1,136)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F
1 January 2014 +ZA=+—-Hk
—Z-mF—R—H 14,993 2,492 2,258 19,743
Depreciation e 898 317 1,500 2,715
Impairment loss (Note 10) RIEER (MFE10) 2,067 2 - 2,069
Disposals He (6,610) (265) (967) (7,842)
Written off g - (177) - (177)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-WE+=A=t—-8H 11,348 2,369 2,791 16,508
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2014 R-E-OF+=A=+-H - 116 3,053 3,169
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=F+-A=+—H 2,843 526 2,640 6,009

AEERERERERAFZABZEE
FEHA102,0008 T (2T —=F:
305,000/ 70) - ZEED EIRAERAE
B2t &HE A

The net carrying value of a motor vehicle held under a finance lease
of the Group was approximately HK$102,000 (2013: HK$305,000).
The asset is pledged to secure the Group’s obligation under a

finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_-ZE—WFE+-F=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE 17. 9% BERZE-FTKEE

GROUP (continued)
Impairment loss

For the year ended 31 December 2014, an impairment loss of
HK$2,069,000 on property, plant and equipment (Note 10) that
relates to the segment of the manufacture and sale of medical
devices products has been recognised as a result of an impairment

assessment made by the management as detailed in Note 18.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a
segment loss of HK$9,687,000 in the segment of manufacture
and sale of plastic moulding products. As a result, the property,
plant and equipment which relates to this segment, and which also
constitutes a cash generating unit (“CGU"), were then assessed
for impairment. The recoverable amount of this property, plant and
equipment was based on a value in use calculation, using cash flow
projection based on estimates and financial budgets approved by
the management. These projections cover a five-year period, and
have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 15.51%. The

value in use calculated was below zero.

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on past performance, experience and their

expectation for market development.

In view of the negative net present value of the future estimated
cash flows of this CGU, the property, plant and equipment relating
to this CGU were written down to zero, with an impairment loss of
HK$5,679,000 recognised in “Impairment Losses and Write Offs” in
the previous year (Note 10).

(%)

VRN SR
HE-_Z-WFE+-_A=t+—HALFE
EREHRERHEEEREERDY BE
TRETE (FERMEE18) -t ik H
Az WE  WE MR EER2,069,000
BT ZREEE (FfEE10) »

HE-_Z-—=%Ft+-A=1+—RH1FE"
REBRRYERHEBREAERY BP
815 9 50 5 189,687,000/ 7T o A It » B

DE(ERK—BREELEN ([BReEL
B )RACYE BERSRESRHYT
ERE - LS - BB L& E 2 TlE S
BMORBERAEBEAETEENREREMN
2B RV HRBEERAR SR EEA
BT -ZERARERFHERERE
F315.51% 2 B AT BA 2R R AL 3R - (0 BB ERT
HERENRET-

\

AR RERAS R 2B KRR R
(BREBEEMNX BRELIERE)TIH
FEBERBRBREERE KREES
HmipERZEHMERE -

ERLBESEAEN 2B ARAS IR
BFELABE WHEKRSES B
ZHE BERREBECREFHAES

B[Rk (B 5 98 e 3 85 ] 9 # 585,679,0007%8
T2 R EEE (FFEE10) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—E—HE+ A =1+—HIFE

mEMBRERME

18. GOODWILL 18. &
The Group
AEH

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-mEg —F—=%F
T Tt
Cost BN 67,362 67,362
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B REHREEE (67,362) (55,526)
Net book value BREHE — 11,836

Impairment testing on goodwill 8 2R E R R

All of the goodwill relates to the manufacture and sale of medical
devices products business unit acquired as part of the acquisition
of the Titron Group in 2011. At each reporting date, the goodwill
relating to this business unit, which is also a CGU, is subject to

impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined using
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based on estimates
and financial budgets approved by the management. These
projections cover a five-year period, and have been discounted
using a pre-tax discount rate of 14.62% (2013: 18.88%). The cash
flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated using a

zero growth rate (2013: zero growth rate).

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on past performance, experience and their

expectation for future market development.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the CGU fell
below zero (2013: HK$14,863,000), resulting in an impairment
loss of HK$11,836,000 (2013: HK$34,071,000) (Note 10) and
HK$2,069,000 (2013: Nil) (Note 17) recognised on goodwill and
property, plant and equipment respectively in the current year.
Accordingly, goodwill has been written down to zero as at 31

December 2014.

FEMEBER_FT——FRBZRENHE
EERERBEREBEML FRKERE
KB —BM)EB- REHREAL Bl
ERBEM (TARCELASEU) BRIHE
RAHETTIRERI A

AeELBEUzARESRCREETE
BRitEz Bt R BRBEEMNBRER
ERAGEERBEEEE ZERARE
HFEHE BER14.62% (ZE—=%F:
18.88% ) 2 TA AT AL IR AL - 48 Hh AL F 1)
MzREeRECERATERX (2T —=

T EHER)RE

AR RERAS R 2B RKR R
(BREBEEME BRRERIEERX)THH
AEEEEEREBEIRE KREESF
HARKRMIGERZBHRMETE -

BEFE BeESBU I RESET
BREERET (ZZT—=%F:14,863,000/%
) BYEAFESRIREEBARYE.
T 55 K2 2 e B SRORU(E 1B 18.11,836,00078 7T
(ZZ—=1%:34,071,00087L) (HzE10)
12,069,000 (T —=F &) (W
FH17) B RZT—HFE+=ZA=+—
B ABEEMAES-

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (continuea) 18.F 8 (&)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued) BEZBENR &)

This significant impairment loss is primarily due to the performance BESEHAEER  DRAEREEERDE
of this business segment not matching up to management’s EHNBEBO B2 RBAEEEENR_-Z
expectations in 2014 and the business unit’s expected performance —VOEZ BN AR EBEMR -F
in 2015 and beyond based on the latest information available. —AFRNAEZERAREMY - FEEXER
Much of the problem arose due to the slow resuming of demand REEBEHBFE—EARNEETS A
of the Group's medical devices products though continuous effort HASEBREREEM 2T RMEEEE
has been spent in the past few years to develop the market and B URRZE—NFFRERAELA—ZEE
the loss of a key management personnel in late 2014 to explore ERFEFPREMZEEERBAE - —M
new customer base and products. As in previous years, reliance has TE OB —BELRBE-—ZTP WWEPH
been placed on a single customer in this segment. This customer's KEBHFRBIHEEF 2 TIGHRER
demand from the Group is highly driven by the end customers’ BMrEBERREEREBEREWERTE-
marketing strategy and overall trend and life cycle of the medical ZEPER T —NEFFEMNGAREERR]
devices. This customer informed the Group in late 2014 that it may BEERERAEMEER ARESH TS
consider using other suppliers and that one of the products supplied ER BAKEHE HR—HERRAE
by the Group would be discontinued in 2016 due to expected end HEGERASSERMBER - — R FE
of life cycle based on latest market information. The budget/forecast IEEEH - TEE FERAEEETH-

has been revised downward accordingly.

19. INVENTORIES 19. 78
The Group
AEME
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
=F-—mF —F=

FHERT FHT

Raw materials R 634 4,186

Work in progress paaYe 170 573

Finished goods BURK 994 2,193

1,798 6,952
During the year ended 31 December 2014, a write off of REEZEZT—NF+_A=+—HLFE
HK$ 1,247,000 (2013: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss (Note 11). BRI ERMEE1,247,0008 L (=&

—=F|) (MsE11)
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20. BB R E M EWRIE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—NE+-_FA=1+—HLFE

The Group The Company
xEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T-= —B-QmF —T-=F
FER FHET FET FHT
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 10,067 10,213 - -
Other deposits, prepayments and Hiniz e BAHRER
other receivables oA e Yo 508 2,612 8,504 595 5,891
Less: Impairment loss recognised W REMERE
on other deposits, B FIER
prepayments and other H{th g Y 5018
receivables ERRBERBE (4) (5,287) - (5,287)
2,608 3,217 595 604
Total trade and other receivables B REAEKAIBEEE 12,675 13,430 595 604

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days (2013:

30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The following is an aged

analysis of trade receivables (net of accumulated impairment losses)

by invoice date as at the end of the reporting period.

AEBLTHESREFP 2 FHEEHAR30
FIOK (ZZT— =% :30F890K) - NR%
HIRE 5 R IRIE (B REDRE/E) %
BEABHZERIITWT

The Group
AER

2014 2013
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—ZE-NF —E—=F
FHR FBT
Current B & 81 1
1 to 90 days 1290K 9,895 10,027
91 to 180 days 912180k 67 59
Over 181 days 181 KA 24 126
Trade receivables Z 5 W EIE 10,067 10,213

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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wa

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z

Bt 35 SRR Y &

—E-mEF A=+ —HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining

to the economic environment in which the customers operate.

20 EZ R HMEWE

NIE (&)

ESREREKEN S BRBHRERE
FEEZRAREFPHAETEMNEER G-

WEFHEEPREP ZBEB BN KT
MABRAXNZEE XEZEEEFPZE
EERUARBEFXBERBIRERE
AEBET AR ZFERTEETMER R

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. w H TR RORE 2 FE MR IR B 5 FE M5k IE
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired constitute WEEAIB0% (T —=F:73% ) - BER
about 80% (2013: 73%) of total trade receivables, and relate to B EEREEZEFRAM NREHKR
a range of customers for whom there was no recent history of 2 5 REWGRIE (M RETRERE) K22 5
default. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net HZERESWIT .
of accumulated impairment losses) by due date as at the end of the
reporting period.
The Group
AEME
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NE —ET—=F
FHET FET
Neither past due nor impaired KB IARE 8,066 7,452
Less than 3 months past due mE LR =@A 1,977 2,606
3 to 6 months past due mEI == XEA - 67
Over 6 months past due BEA7SE A LA & 24 88
2,001 2,761
Trade receivables B 5 EWERIE 10,067 10,213
Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with AEBEESEUGRIBZBRBIERREH

aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,001,000 (2013:
HK$2,761,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided any impairment loss. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

HE s A BRE(E492,001,000% 7T (=
T—=%:2,761,000/70) 2 FEWIE -
REBWREL ERAEBERE K&
[ M 5 52 S A AR TR R A AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHEZ-F—NF+=-F=+—HULFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 200 B REMEWRE &)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good repayment record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the impairment losses of other

ERMERBEEBEFBRERNERET
ERRHERF2BUEFPEBA-REEE
RUEBEREY ARSHEBBERA/DT
WD REEELR EEERARLE
W BB % FRERRIE LR E R -

Hit#Z e BANREREBER

deposits, prepayments and other receivables NEREBEEZE
The Group The Company
AEE EYN|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE —E-=F —E-MF —T-=F
FET FHT FER FHT
At 1 January m—HA—H 5,287 4,230 5,287 4,230
Written off i gH (5,287) - (5,287) -
Impairment loss recognised BERABRERE

(Note 10) (FE10) 4 1,057 - 1,057
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4 5,287 - 5,287

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 200 B REMEWRE &)
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As at 31 December 2013, included in other deposits, prepayments
and other receivables were refundable earnest monies of
approximately HK$5,359,000 paid to the potential vendors (the
“Vendors”) for a possible acquisition of a company specialised
in clinical studies in various areas of pathology in Germany
(the “Investment Project”). A non-legal binding memorandum
of understanding was entered into by the Company and the
Vendors on 28 September 2012 as per the announcement made
by the Company on 2 October 2012. No formal agreement
was entered into by the Company and the Vendors as at 31
December 2012. Provision of HK$4,230,000 was made in 2012
based on management’s assessment at that time. During 2013,
the management decided to abandon the Investment Project as
due diligence revealed that patents of the Vendors had legal title
issues. As a result, an additional allowance for impairment of
HK$1,057,000 was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2013 based on an impairment assessment carried out by the
management as at 31 December 2013. During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Company considered the recovery of
the earnest monies is remote and, accordingly, the receivable
of HK$5,359,000 was written off entirely, of which HK$72,000
was written off directly to profit or loss for the year (Note 10)
and HK$5,287,000 was written off against the provision brought

forward.

W-ZB—=%+-A=+—8 Hiixs-
& A5 SR8 Ko H fth JE WK TE B 45 B AT A U R
EE-HERZEREEBRARARZ AR
([EEE]) BREBEEEH([EH])
XA 2 AR B R € 495,359,000/ 7T ©
MARARN-_ZE——F+A-HTEZA
& ARRREEFER T —ZFAN
AZ+NBE L TEEBHNRT 2 R
SR T —ZF+ZA=+—H K
NEEE R W ET M ERGE R =
T——F RREBEZRTEELRE
4,230,000 L - R -_ZE—=F -BHNFER
BEPRREFETENGFEES EZHEE R
M WEBEREREREER Bt
BEEEEN_-_Z—=F+=-_A=+—H
T2 BEN G REEZE—=F1+=
R=+—RILFE#EIN#R1,057,00078
T REREE RBEE_Z—NF+=A
=S+—HLEFE ARARABWEHES
#ee AR A k- R FRIE5,359,0000% 7T
B2 £P72,0008 TR AFEER
EREmME (MFE10) - ™5,287,000%
7 B A 7 AT 48 A 8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—E—HE+ A =1+—HIFE

21.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 1. RERBESEYWURECEF

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS EHEXR
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE —E-= —g-mE —ZT-=
FTERT FAT FHERT FAT
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 1,546 4,922 = -
Cash at banks and in hand BITRFEAS 62,580 3,059 29,653 480
64,126 7,981 29,653 480
Less: Pledged time deposits B EEBEBER (1,546) (3,405) = -
62,580 4,576 29,653 480

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held
by the Group and short-term bank deposits with maturity of three
months or less. The bank balances carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.001% to 0.25% (2013: 0.001% to 0.35%) per

annum.

The short-term bank deposits of HK$1,546,000 (2013:
HK$4,922,000) carry interest at fixed rates at 1.95% (2013:
ranging from 0.30% to 2.10%) per annum. Included in the short-
term bank deposits are pledged time deposits of RMB1,227,000
(2013: RMB1,208,000 and RMB1,466,000) at an annual interest
rate of 1.95% (2013: 1.62% and 2.10% respectively) deposited as

securities for certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

ReRkBeEEVMRERAEERA ZRT
EARERE URBRA=ZMBEAKIUTZ
BHERITER - RITERETSFREN
F0.001/E%0.25/F (=T —=%:0.001Z
Z0.35F )5t R

W ERR 1T 13 301,546,000 0 (=2 — =
% 4,922,000 JT) & [E F & F % 1.95
E(ZZ—=Z%: N1 F030EZ2.10F )&
B RHBTERTEEEERETHER
ANER¥1,227,000t (ZE2—=F: ARK
1,208,0007T &2 A R #1,466,0007T ) * &4
MEIBE(ZE—=F:HFl1.62E K
2105t DERRMASEEK TE TR
IEEZERMEA
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_-ZE—WFE+-F=+—HIFE

22 BEZREMENRE

The Group The Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —E-=F —E-pmE —T-=%
FTEx FHET FER FHET
Trade payables B 5 e IR 5,656 6,121 - -
Accruals and other payables JRE AT AR I I EL i e A5 3RIE 16,716 16,192 7,545 7,766
22,372 22,313 7,545 7,766
Amounts due to related parties B EEALTRIEA 9,200 9,200 = -
Amounts due to subsidiaries e BB A R A - - - 1
31,572 31,513 7,545 7,767
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, included in amounts due to RZE—NER_FT—=F+_A=+—

related parties is an amount due to Titron Group Holdings Limited
("TGHL"), in the amount of HK$1,700,000 (2013: HK$1,700,000).
TGHL was the one of the vendors in the acquisition of the Titron
Group in 2011, further details of which are set out in Note 33.
All of the shareholders of TGHL own shares in the Company,
and include Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. This amount was unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

The remaining balance of amounts due to related parties were also

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

H - EREEATFIEBRE —EE[Titron
Group Holdings Limited ([TGHL |) Z 7
1,700,000/ 7T ( — & —=4:1,700,000%
L) TGHLAZZ —— FIREEREE@ES
EREP IR EE—SHEERN T
33 TGHLE KRG HEH R 2 AR5
BANRXERERBEBRERGBLE A
BREAEEAREL WEREKRKEE-

ENBEEALZHBRTAEERRLE
WAREREE

UNTRARBESHRREZERHEINZES
e SRR BRle 0 AT

The Group
AEE

2014 2013
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—F-—mF —E=F
FET FET
Within 3 months =EAR 5,623 5,760
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=-EABRNEAR 29 361
Over 6 months A< E A 4 -
5,656 6,121

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30-90 days

(2013: 30-90 days).

BEERZFHEEHAEI0EOKR (=S
— =% :30F90K) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—E+-_F=1+—HALFE

23. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

23. RITREMEE

The Group The Company
rEE NN

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T-=F —E-ImF —T-=F
FET FHEL FHET FHAL

Bank loans and overdraft RITERREX
— trust receipt loans —ERkEER 2,169 5,498 = -
- bank overdraft —RITEX - 566 = -
2,169 6,064 - -

Other borrowings Hthg &
— short term borrowings -RHEE - 10,000 - 10,000
2,169 16,064 - 10,000
The Group The Company
rEE FNYNE|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
—E-mE —E-=F —E-mF —E—=

TERT FHET FHERT FHET
Secured BHEA 2,169 3,967 - -
Unsecured Ecig = 12,097 = 10,000
2,169 16,064 - 10,000

The trust receipt loans borrowed from major banks situated in Hong
Kong were secured by certain assets of the Group, and bore interest

at 4.00% to 6.00% per annum.

On 25 April 2013, the Group obtained a new short-term loan in the RZE-—Z=ZFMA-_+HB FEEERF
amount of HK$10,000,000. The loan initially bore interest at 48% A 8010,000,00058 70 2 FT L HEE Fh o 3%
per annum and was repayable in six months. Subsequent to the EERVITEFEMERIABE B WARN

initial agreement date, the Company agreed a preferential rate of B AAEE - Ry P B BE - ARFE

18% per annum after discussion with the lender and the repayment Eﬁi?ﬁT’%?ﬁ BRABIRISE 2 EBFF K

date was extended to one year from the draw down date. The loan B AEEEEARRARB—Fi&-

was used for general working capital of the Group. The loan was ZEEFERERAER . —REEES-

fully repaid on 8 April 2014. ZEBFERZZE—OFOANBEHIE
=,

BUREBZIEZRITEAZGERREE
RN AREEZETEEFRER WIRF

FRA.00EE6.00E:T B °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZF—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

23.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, total current bank loans and overdraft
which contain a repayment on demand clause and other borrowings

were scheduled to repay as follows:

23.8RITREMEE &)

—HE+-_A=+—H HEFKRE
B E Rz BN IR 17 B 3%
REMmEERAMBERNAT

Ko 35 2 458 DA

The Group The Company
rEE b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T—= —E-NF —T—=
BT FET FEx FHAT
On demand or within one year BRERIR—FR 2,169 16,064 = 10,000

The exposure of borrowings to various interest rates changes is as

AxENEZHHEEELZRARNT

follows:

The Group The Company
rEHE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —ZT—=F —E-mFE —E-=F
TERT FET FTER FET
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEEE - 10,612 - 10,000
Variable-rate borrowings AEREEER 2,169 5,452 - -
2,169 16,064 - 10,000
Banking Facilities RITEE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's banking facilities are secured
by pledged time deposits (Note 21) and guarantees given by the
Company to a subsidiary with a maximum liability of approximately

HK$9,500,000 (2013: HK$17,500,000).

24. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

As at 31 December 2013, the amount due to a director, Ms. Leung
Mei Han, was denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured and

interest free. The amount was fully repaid in 2014.

24.

RZE-—MOF+ZA=1+—H Xx&EEZ
RITEE AR ERTEHFR (iE21)
R R AR — A B A T TR 2 BRI
R W& = B E4£9,500,0008 T (= F
— =% :17,500,000/7C) °

N EEFHE

R-B—=F+-_A=+—H ENESF
REWZ L2 RIBALETTAHE - BEEIT
REB -ZRHEER _Z—NFE2HEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—E+-_FA=1+—HLFE

25. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 25 MEHEAE
The Group leases a motor vehicle. Such asset is generally classified AEBEHE-—WMAE -BARERAEREE
as a finance lease as the rental period amounts to the estimated ZTEF AR EE  mAKE — A
useful economic life of the asset concerned and often the Group REEHEPREINREA cBEREBEZ
has the right to purchase the asset outright at the end of the BE At ZEE—BROI2BEARMEHEE-

minimum lease term by paying a nominal amount.

Future lease payments are due as follows: RAEENREBAFRAOT

Minimum lease

payments Interest Present Value

2014 2014 2014

HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$'000

REEENR ME BRE

—F-mE —F-mE —F-mE

TR FTiER TR

Not later than one year —FR 18 (2) 16

Minimum lease

payments Interest Present Value

2013 2013 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEBENK 2 RE

2= —E-=F —T—=F

FET FET FET

Not later than one year —FR 223 (19) 204
Later than one year and not later than ~ —FE K REFER

five years 18 (2) 16

241 (21) 220

B VI BT HEHEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZF—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

25. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 25. MEEERE 2
(continued)
Interest rate underlying the obligation under a finance lease at MEREREZHBNERE S L HE B
respective contract dates is as follows: ™
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=
Fixed-rate & ) = 1.9% 1.9%
The present value of future lease payment are analysed as: RAREENRZRESNOAT :
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF =4
FAR FBT
Current liabilities mE A& 16 204
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 16
16 220
The Group’s obligation under a finance lease is secured by the AEECREREAEDALEBAZEHME
lessor’s charge over the leased assets. BAEMLEER

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE _-—E—HE+ A =1+—HIFE

26. DEFERRED TAX

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have any

deferred tax assets or liabilities.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised and

movements during the current and prior years are as follows:

mEMBRERME

26. EFER 18

R-E-—MER - TE—=F+-_A=+—
B AEETEEEHEBEEKARE-

ERREMFEACHERZEERARE
N(BE)REZHHBNOT

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEBRERE BEEE At
T FER FHT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F—H—H 616 (514) 102
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss for the ~ REEEBZFA (5t A)
year kR (616) 514 (102)
At 31 December 2013, R=-B—=%F
1 January 2014 and +=ZA=+-8"
31 December 2014 “E-NmME-A-BR
—E-MF
+=ZA=+—H - - -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$238,567,000 (2013: HK$214,060,000). The
deferred tax assets recognised in prior years of HK$514,000 in
respect of unused tax losses have been reversed and no deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses have been recognised during the
year, as management consider it unlikely that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
foreseeable future with certainty in the relevant tax jurisdiction and

entity.

Tax losses of HK$63,000 (2013: HK$163,000) attributable to certain
subsidiaries in the PRC have an expiry period of five years. The
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$238,504,000 (2013:
HK$213,897,000) will not expire under current tax legislation.

RBEBRR XEB s RPABEEE
%) /238,567,000 T (=& — =%
214,060,000/ 7T ) » P4 8 1E & [E 3t R 5
I BB RERZ EE R IE & E514,000% 70
EEE MAREEERREEBHSEA
ERER BB TAAES TR RRERD
S A AT LB R B TE 48 - SO N R R &
SEERRECHIELE-

# F o Bl BT B A &) E {5 B 1B 5 #863,000
BT (ZZ— =4 :163,0008 L) 2 [E
M ARF - RERITHEZ B THE
/& 18 %238,504,0008 T (=T — =4
213,897,000/ 7T ) & J&E i ©

B VI BT HEHEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZF—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. B A&
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
BHHE )
F&T
Authorised: EIE
Balance as at 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+ZA=+—HK
31 December 2014 —E-NME+A=+—RAZ
4 ek 40,000,000,000 400,000
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
RHEHE |
FAET
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Balance as at 1 January 2013 N_E—=ZF—A—HB2Z&#% 8,758,239,861 87,582
Share consolidation of every ten (10) shares #&+(10) SR EE0.01E T2
of par value of HK$0.01 each into one (1) BB &HA—(1EEBEC.1ETLZ
consolidated share of par value HK$0.1 ettt 2RO a0t &
each; and reduction in par value of BREMHRMHEE
each consolidated share from HK$0.1 BO. 1B TTEIR ZE0.0148 7T
to HK$0.01 (Note 28) (Mt5E28) (7,882,415,875) (78,824)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 R—ZTE—=%F+=-_A=+—Hxz
=R 875,823,986 8,758
Issue of shares in April 2014 (b) RZZT—ME 0 A TR (b) 175,160,000 1,752
Issue of shares on conversion of AR RIR TR G
convertible notes (Note 33) (P3E33) 80,087,620 801
Issue of shares in June 2014 (c) RZZE—WMFERNAETERDQ 175,160,000 1,752
Issue of shares in November 2014 (d) RZZE—F+— AETRM () 226,200,000 2,261
Balance as at 31 December 2014 R-E-—NFEF+-A=+—HZ
ek 1,532,431,606 15,324
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—E+-_F=1+—HALFE

27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Save as disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 1 March
2013 in respect of a proposed capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) which was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting of the Company on 25
March 2013, the Capital Reorganisation has become effective on
26 March 2013 as details below.

(i) Every ten (10) existing shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated

into one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.10 each;

(i)  The issued share capital was reduced by cancelling
of HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each issued
consolidated share so that the par value of each issued

consolidated share be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01;

(iii)  The entire amount standing to the credit of the share

premium account of the Company was cancelled; and

(iv)  The credit arising from the share premium account of
the Company was transferred to the contributed surplus
account of the Company to be applied to set off against

the accumulated losses of the Company.

27. R ()

GEE

(a)

BRAAFBSHA-_T—=F=A—H
FHEERASEE ([RAEA] &K
ARER-_ZT—Z=F=A=+FH
T ARRBIRRERARE F#E) 2
BT BEEN BAEHAER -
—=FZAZTARBER FHBOT

I

48

() ARBBBEITRAFEF0)R
BREBEC.OVETLZERBRGE
HFAE—MKREEI10ETZE
PR 17 -

(iy BREBEREETEHRD ZH
R 880.098 JTHIRE 31T
A BUESREZETEFRND
ZHEEMO0. 10 TTHIRE0.018

.

(i)  ARFROEER 22 IHERRE
Pl &

(iv) ARBRMSEERMESZER
TYERBERRRBARRE A
AREEARRR 2 Rt -

B VI BT HENEHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_-ZE—WFE+-F=+—HIFE

27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

On 7 April 2014, 175,160,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were placed at a price of HK$0.239 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$40,111,500 was credited
to share premium account. The net proceed of approximately
HK$40,318,000, after deducting commission and placing
expenses of approximately HK$1,545,000, are intended to be

utilised as general working capital of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, convertible notes
amounting to HK$40,043,810 were converted into 80,087,620
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of

HK$0.5 per share.

On 30 June 2014, 175,160,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were placed at a price of HK$0.239 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$40,111,500 was credited
to share premium account. The net proceed of approximately
HK$40,292,000, after deducting commission and placing
expenses of approximately HK$1,571,000, are intended to be
utilised as to (i) research and development of new medical and/or
healthcare products and services; (ii) launch of new medical and/
or healthcare products and service; (iii) set up and development
of e-commerce platform; and (iv) establishment of new public

relations and new human resources agencies.

On 14 November 2014, 226,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were placed at a price of HK$0.118 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$24,430,000 was credited
to share premium account. The net proceed of approximately
HK$25,529,000, after deducting commission and placing
expenses of approximately HK$1,163,000 are intended to be

utilised as general working capital of the Group.

27. R ()

GEE

(b)

(%)

RZZT—PFPmA+H " 175,160,000
AR EE0.0OVE T 2 TBARIE B
fe & B (50.2398 L 2 B E ° 4
40,111,500 7T 2 Bz 17 4 (B B 5t AR
MEER - EHNREERESERY
1,545,000 018 « FR{S IBFREA B
40,318,000 7T B AREARSEE 2 — %
EEES -

HE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIF
€+ 40,043,810/ 7T 2 Al IR F 8 1%
FREMDOSETZEE LIRERRA
80,087,620/ B IR EE0.01/B T 2 &
AR o

RZZT—-—WmFRNA=TH
175,160,000/ F IR EE0.01 8 T 2 &
BRZERAEERN0.2398 T2 ER
i & © #940,111,50058 7T 2 B 17 % B
BEEF AR & B A MBRAS RE
EEFH#1,571,0008 T - FT185kE
EEB#Y /540,292,000 7T 4 A A ()BT
T RAEFERERSREEGRR
T (DML T EE R RIREER R
R (IR ERAEEFHETEE
RV FABBR AR RMANE
il NEI

RZZE—WOF+—A+HTAB -
226,200,000 &R E1E0.01/ B T2 &
BIIETIRELE 701188 L 2 B
L& © #924,430,0008 T 2 IR (D HEE
ST AR & ERR - IR A S R E B
FA#)1,163,000% 7L 1% « FR13 5K 1B 5 58
#9/425,529,0007 7« #tAEASERZ
—REEES -
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28. RESERVES 28. f# &
The Company

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b)

YA

R EE EXfifE 2 B8 @i

FEL TET T TEL
(Frita) (FizEb)

As at 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H 223,828 1,941 (281,582) (55,813)

Loss for the year FEBE - - (46,285) (46,285)

Total comprehensive income FRAEHPRALE

for the year - - (46,285) (46,285)

Equity-settled share-based VAR 78 48 B AR 17 7

transaction EMsR5
~ lapse of options granted to - RTEBEZBRERN
employees - (1,940) 1,940 -
Capital reduction (Note 27) B A B (BTEE27) (223,828) - 302,652 78,824
As at 31 December 2013 and RZE—Z=F
1 January 2014 TZA=+—-HkK
T—-mE—-HA—H - 1 (23,275) (23,274)
Loss for the year FEBE - - (67,292) (67,292)
Total comprehensive income FRE2HKRALLE
for the year - - (67,292) (67,292)
Issue of shares on conversion of HEBARBZRETRG
convertible notes (Note 33) (P3E33) 26,429 - - 26,429
Issue of shares upon placing RECERETRG
(Note 27) (P3E27) 104,653 - - 104,653
Shares issue expenses (Note 27) BTG F X (BTEE27) (4,279) - - (4,279)
As at 31 December 2014 RZT—F
+=-ZR= 126,803 1 (90,567) 36,237

Notes: B 5T

(@)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section (@) BHBERZEAXBREE—NN—
40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. FRANEFABEIRE -

(b) At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the capital reserve represents by RZZTE—NFER-_ZT—=F1+=A
fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share =+—H BEXFBEBERURG A
options granted to directors and employees of the Company B2 NN g HeR (E—P5F
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted BERIN AR E M BEIREMT4.13) BER
for share-based payments as further detailed in Note 4.13 to the BRYARRBIEERER 2 RITEER
consolidated financial statements. B2 BRSMFEHE ZAREE.

B VI BT HEHEHES
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29. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 since June 2014 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC participate in certain
government retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of their eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the relevant
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the

Schemes.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling HK$652,000 (2013: HK$914,000) (Note
11). At the end of the reporting period, there are no forfeited

contributions.

29. EERKEF

AEBRBEESREMERE S EE -
AEBBRBEAREREEANZEZES
B —ERHMAEeTE ([BEeT
Z]) - RESHE BB EIATEZ
ERMTRKE B - BIERESE 5=
T-MENANUER BEREEESHAR
BEZBBWMA Z5%MATEER R H
LAE A A R A30,000/ T (R =ZF — Y
F7X A1 425,000 7T ) & ER o (A5 EI1E
2 KBNS SR o

RIBHBEERAKE AR  AEEEFE 2
B AT2EETBTRKENGS ([
SEE) B - MEBARERZERE
tRANEDEAERER ZERIREF - M
ZEFHBE R Z TR BARRE R E
AR ERHFEZE TADLE -1
ZHEBRBELEAEERNTRAEE 228
BRREET - AKERZEFEZE -]
ERXNBRBEZ S EFEREEL 24

=X
e

<Pp

RER - AEBEEHERKRENFEETE &
652,000/ 7T (—FE— =4 :914,00006 7T)
(BFFETT) o A TR BRI AR BE B A A 402 Uit

Eo
oA °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - E—E+ -F=1+—HIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had a share option scheme which was adopted on 12
June 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, to take up
options at nominal consideration to subscribe for shares of the

Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the scheme, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from its shareholders. Notwithstanding this, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the scheme shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to any individual
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to any individual
who is a substantial shareholder of the Company or independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital at the date of grant
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in

advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1 per grant of options. Options may
generally be exercised at any time during the period after the
options have been granted, such period to expire not later than 10
years after the date of the grant of the options. The subscription
price for shares will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of options granted,
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of options granted;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised.

30. i IR fE ST &

ARARER-ZZBZWFRA+ZHERH—
FERAERTE Bl ARRESCERE
AMFEFAEEEEARMAREERED
R RMmABEARR RN

MR ZET I TR 2 A BAREETT
512 A B B 1T 2 IR 1D AR B BR FE AN A R ER
BHEBRE Z E#iE - TR BBR T
BEZFTEEHREITRMBEZ210% &
B RIBEZEERLBRITEZ
Fra M ARIT BRI TR AT aE B AT 2
B ROEE  TABBNREEITRMG
BE730% o AT 1218 A B M A
THREBREEITEADEITRETE
TZRDBE  RERNRIRRE LB -
TAEEBEMRREE ETRNEH 1% -
REZEEEZL AR (8EZB)1E121EA
HERER B AR T EZRELE T IEH
MEFYAEMREESEZHEAZALE
HRRBARRRRIFRLE BRAZ0.1%K(E
i 385,000,000/ 7T < SR iE - MEE K
BER N B R RALE -

BREzBREARRLE B E28A A5
BREOZBRESSVB T ERR B
PR — A T A 1 T R R 1% 2 B R N BB By
T MBBBEERTERN K DBREE
B&10F i - R RBBESTERORH
BREZEAARDBBRMOETE: (NEEER
HEREERNAEEER 2 ARRRN
FHRTE: RGNV AREOEE=EFF
ZBEE - BRERETEATREMA
FEZREHR-
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

30. B HESHE (2)

BREARENZFHBET:

Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BEAH TREEE TEE
2005 25 January 2005 25 January 2005 - 24 January 2015 HK$1.629
(Note a)
—ETRF —EERF-AZTEH —EERF-A-THHEZE 1.629/8 7T
—E-RF-AZ-+MH (Kizta)
2011 6 May 2011 6 May 2011 =5 May 2013 HK$2.097
(Note b)
—F——fF —E-——FFHARH —E-——FHEARBE 2.097% T
—T-=FHAEA (FiEDb)
Movements of the outstanding options by category as at 31 RZE—MFERZFT—=F+ZA=+—
December 2014 and 2013 are disclosed on page 136. HiERERE D 2 R1THEBREZZS )
RE136EHE -
The fair value of share options granted on 25 January 2005 was REZZEERF-A-+HERE ZERE
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair ZRARBEDERAROR -FRTHEE
value of share options granted on 6 May 2011 was calculated using BEAGE R_Z——FAAAEN
The Trinomial option pricing model. The inputs into the model were ZERE ARBEDRA=ZENBESE
as follows: EBRAGE KA 2@ ARBOT :
2011 2005
EY T —gens
Fair value at measurement date Rt Bz AREBE HK$0.097/# 7L HK$0.096/% 7T
Stock asset price REEEBRK HK$0.202% 7T HK$0.1580/% 7T
Exercise price (B HK$0.2034% T HK$0.1580/%8 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA K 18 90.74% 72.00%
Expected life T8 B 4F A 2 years 5 years
Risk-free rate RN R 0.550% 2.801%
Expected dividend yield TEHA R B =& 0% 0%
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Note:

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation (see Note 27), adjustments
were made to the number of ordinary shares to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the subscription rights attaching to all these share
options then outstanding granted under the Share Option Scheme by

the decrease of:

(a) 4,265 ordinary shares to 425 ordinary shares and the exercise
prices of the outstanding options were adjusted from HK$0.1629
per ordinary share to HK$1.629 per ordinary share, effective from

26 March 2013; and

(b) 19,400,000 ordinary shares to 1,940,000 ordinary shares and the
exercise prices of the outstanding options were adjusted from
HK$0.2097 per ordinary share to HK$2.097 per ordinary share,
effective from 26 March 2013.

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous ten years. The expected
life used in the model was adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural consideration.

30. B PR HEGHEl ()
i -

BN ETRAER (RME27)  RITERE

BREAIREZAAZSERHARITERS

BREMME s RBERSE TRERETZE
BEHEEEEB T ARFE:

(a) BEBARH B 4,265 £4250%
i RITEEREZTEENBTR
EBR0IG29B THEEERLBR
16298  BZE—=F=A=+~
ARRAER: &

(by EBAREE H19,400,0000% 5% &
1,940,000 - i fa 7 17 {58 i AR 2 17
{8 Rl B & J% & 38 %0.2097 74 T A &
EEREMR2.097B T BT —=
FZAZ+ARBENR-

BHREIREBEARARERBETERZ
‘1@&5&@’\%%%%0%%E@FﬁﬁﬁﬁZi‘E?rﬁ
HERBEEERE 2 &EMGF st A TEENE
TERIITAERZEZETARE-

B VI BT HENEHES
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees during the year:

30. B HESHE (2)

TREBEFANEZNREFEZARAE

By 28

Number of share options (after adjustment for share

consolidation effective on 26 March 2013)

BREYE (ER-Z-Z5=ZA-+ BERR

RBEHHEHRE)
Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December
2014 the year 2014
R-B-OF R-B-OF
—-A-8 +=ZA=+-8H
CE R EREH e K AT B
2005 - 298 - 298
Exercisable at the end of REBEHRTTHE
the reporting period 298
Weighted average exercise price: MELHTEE: HK$1.62978 Tt HK$1.62978 7t
Number of share options (after adjustment
for share consolidation effective on 26 March 2013)
BREHE (ER-Z-=5=A-+XB4£¥2
R EHHELRE)
Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December
2013 the year 2013
R-FE-=F R-E-=F
b = +=ZA=+-H
e K AT 6 EREN e R AT 6
2005 “TTRE 425 (127) 298
2011 —Z——F 1,940,000 (1,940,000) -
1,940,425 (1,940,127) 298
Exercisable at the end of RS AR

the reporting period

Weighted average exercise price: MELHTEE:

298

HK$2.097/8 T HK$2.0978 T HK$1.62978 T

No options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding
at 31 December 2014 had a weighted average exercise price of
HK$1.629 (2013: HK$1.629) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.07 year (2013: 1.07 years).

FABEBTEERE - R=2FT—EOF+=
A=+—BERITEZEREZ NEFY
TEER1E298 T (ZE—=F:1.629
SIL) AR S LT A0.07F
(ZE—=F:1.07F) -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. B R fERT & ()
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the RS ER 2 R Em R AR T 08 I < 23
reporting period are as follows: R :
Number of share options
(after adjustment for share consolidation
effective on 26 March 2013)
BREHE (ER=-B-=ZF=A=tAXA
ERZRBEHELEBE)
2014 2013
—E-lmF —Z-=#%
Exercise price Number of share Number of share
HKS
THE RAHA RIDEER
BT
Exercisable period TR
25 January 2005 to 24 January 2015 ZEERF-AZ+HAZE
“E-RE¥-A-TMA 1.629 298 298
No expense has been recognised for the years ended 31 December HEZFT—HNOFR=-FT—=F+=A8
2014 and 2013 in relation to share options granted by the =T -—HEFEREFRARTRL 2B
Company. MRS o
31.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES BT.RME AR s
The Company
ARAH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-mEg —B—=F
FER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost I TR - R 39,173 39,172
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (i)) JiE U B B R R EE (I REG)) 375,986 328,060
415,159 367,232
Less: Impairment loss recognised on B RIRE R 2 REERE
investment (39,172) (39,172)
Less: Impairment loss recognised on amounts J& : &t F& W B B 2 Bl ZE R
due from subsidiaries BB EE (347,129) (290,518)
(386,301) (329,690)
28,858 37,542

B VI BT HENEHES
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31.RAMIB AR 2 (#)
HE-—T-—mE+-F=+—ALEE.

31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, an additional impairment

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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loss of HK$56,611,000 (2013: HK$49,788,000) on amounts due
from subsidiaries has been recognised as a result of the continuous
unsatisfactory performance of the underlying businesses, i.e.
manufacture and sale of medical devices products and plastic

moulding products, of the subsidiaries noted for current year.

Note:

(i) The amounts due from subsidiaries are in the nature of current

HRMEAR XD (ANRERHE
BESBERREBEAER) CRBEHE
RAAIBAS - #R B 7 U BHT B 1 A) SR IE R AR
RO EE1E56,611,0008 0 (T —=
% 149,788,000/ 7T) °

GEE

(i) EUHBARFZEBERERLE X8
IR RS RARERERE-

accounts and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up share/
registered capital

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

AAREEHBATZHBENT :

Principal activities

KELEERE LA L 3t B BRTRBERE EMER ARRAEEREEAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
BE B
AMCO United Holding Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
("BVI") US$1 each
AMCO United Holding Limited EERAHE BREEIZETZ REER
ERRIR
AMCO United Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of sales and
HK$1 each business development
services to the Group
EREEARAF &k BREEIETZ REEERMEEELES
ekl ERRB
AMCO United Management Services Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of
Limited HK$1 each management services
to the Group
EREERBERLA Bk BREEIELZ RAZERH{ERRE
ERRIR
Apex Solutions Group Limited BVI 30 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
Apex Solutions Group Limited KERZHES BREEI1ZTZ REER
Limi30k
Golden Passage Limited BVI 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
Golden Passage Limited RBETHSE SREE1ZTZ REER
¥ t10,0008%



Name of subsidiaries

31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - F—E+-_F=1+—HALFE

Issued and paid-up share/
registered capital

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

3. RMB AR 2R (&)

Principal activities

WEARARE AL 5 BRTRBERE HEMER ARAEERER DL TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE B
Oakview International Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of 100% - Inactive
US$1 each
Oakview International Limited EERUHE SREEIZELZ TEe%
LB R1000%
Energy Best Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
Energy Best Investments Limited EERUHE BREBIETZ BAER
il
Lisheng Guangtai Company Limited  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totaling - 100% Inactive
HK$10
NEBRBRAF EE AH10BTZ TELX
il
Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totaling HK$1,000 products
BERIEERRANR Bk £ #1,0008 T2 HEEBEAER
LimAR1,000%
Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of medical devices
totaling HK$1,000 products
BERKBRAF 0 £ #£1,0008 T2 HEBBRRBER
Ei@MR1,0000%
Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totaling HK$1,000 products
EREERCERERAR Bk & #1,0008 T2 HEZBEAER
Li@i1,0008
Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
totaling HK$1,000
BEREEERAA Bk £ 41,0002 BREER
Ei®R1,0000%
PRC HK$10,800,000 - 100%  Manufacturing of plastic
moulding products
HE 10,800,000/ 7T WEBPEAER
PRC HK$1,200,000 - 100%  Inactive
H 1,200,000/ 7T e
Success Beauty Limited * BVI 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
RERRDR* EBERAES BREBIETZ BREER
38 50,0008%

B VI BT HENEHES
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31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and paid-up share/

Percentage of equity interest

3. RAMB AR ZER (&)

Name of subsidiaries Place of incorporation registered capital

attributable to the Company

Principal activities

WEARARE LM AR S 3t B BRTRBERE FEMER ARRAEEREEAL TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE BF:3
First Clean Energy Company Limited *  BVI 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
E-FRERERAR RERRES SREE1ZETZ BREER
850,000
Unicorn Elite International Limited *  BVI 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
BHERERAR RBRRHES BHREEIZTZ RERK
L& %50,0008%
Ever Great Finance Limited * Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totaling - 100%  Not yet commence
HK$1 business
BEHBERAR* BE CEbcywd mARREER
el

First Clean Energy Company Limited *  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totaling

HK$1
E—ERERARAR Bk AHIBTZ
Eilali
High Aim Corporation Limited * Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totaling
HK$1
EHERAA Bk af1ETL
el b
* These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2014 which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the Group's results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

During the year, X F| > ZEEEZEH ORI AR AF], a wholly-
owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company was deregistered
and no gain or loss on deregistration of a subsidiary arose
upon its deregistration. The subsidiary was inactive prior to the

deregistration.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

- 100%  Not yet commence
business

OENGIEE S

- 100%  Not yet commence
business

HARRRES

* ZEME AR TR AN TEM AL

ERIBR -_F-—NOFEF+-_A=+—HE
ERRTEFEAEELAFERELEK
REBEEFEERBOHZEARRMBELR
A -BEERR BIHEMHMBARZFE
HERREBRITE -

FA - ARRRAERFEE 22 EKE R FKA
REEER CRID AR A BB EM -
TRUBH A 10 O A A A BT R AR RE M 2 Mk
SRR o RZ M B A B A WU AL I A B AR

CES

FRBEMNBRARBTEAEEES-
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere

in the financial statements, the Group had the following

mEMBRERME

R2.BABALTRS
(a) KB EE D FE 2 X

REERIN AEEEREALTIRIBE

transactions with related parties at agreed terms. EFGEITUTR S -
The Group
EEE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ImF —z—=
B = FHERT FHET
Financial advisory fee paid to Ny —HBEERFZ
a related company B ERE A (i) - 250
Service fee paid to ENT-—HBEAFZ
a related company IR 7% & (ii) = -
Notes: B 5
() Financial advisory fee paid to a related company, of which () BT HBEEQR (RERLLT

(i)

Ms. Leung Mei Han is a director and has beneficial interest,
was made in the ordinary course of business with reference
to the terms negotiated between the Group and the related

company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Atlas Medical
Limited (“Atlas”), a related company, voluntarily waived
its entitlement to a service fee of HK$2,400,000 (2013:
HK$2,400,000). Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, a shareholder,
Managing Director and Chairman of the Company is one of

the beneficial owners of Atlas.

The service fee is associated with the acquisition of the
Titron Group in 2011 as detailed in Note 33 for business
development services provided by Atlas. A Performance
Incentive Agreement was entered into by Atlas and the
Company on 4 March 2011. Details of the Performance
Incentive Agreement were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 25 January 2011, 21 June 2011 and 27
July 2011 respectively and the circular of the Company dated

12 August 2011.

(if)

REEFUHEA Rl <F%
BHERADRATEBBERSYZ

7N 5 (B B B s N B g 2 R E
4o

HE_ZT—NF+-A=+—H1
FE - —HBFE QT Atlas Medical

Limited ([Atlas |) B F& pZ W B
R 7% 2,400,000 T (— T — =
£ 2,400,000/ 7T ) 2 #E A o A1
AIRR ESREBRIRERER
FHERAMasER—RERZEAA -

Z AR 7% B M sE33FT A Al Fh Atlas
REZEBERBREN T ——
FRBEERERFH R ——
F=AMA - AtlasER AR 757 B
WERmHE  BOREGE 15
ENRERARARBHAE-T——
F—A=+HA- —F XA

“t-BERZE——FEAZtt
ZAMEARRBHA T ——
FNA+TZBZ@ERA-

B V0 BT HEHEHES
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32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

R.BEAELRF (2

(b) TEEEAE Z WM

EEREMFEERERERFALZ
FHWT:

On 23 January 2011, Energy Best Investments Limited (one of the
subsidiary of the Group) and Lye Khay Fong, Yip Wai Lun, Alvin,
TGHL and Chelin International Limited (“the Vendors”) entered
into the Sales and Purchases Agreement (“S&P") in relation to the
acquisition of the Titron Group for HK$120.0 million with HK$7.5
million to be paid in cash and the balance of HK$112.5 million
by way of convertible notes (“Titron CN"). Titron CN could be
converted into shares of the Company from the date of issue (i.e 10
October 2011) and ending 10 Business Days prior to the maturity
date, which was 31 December 2015. The Titron Group formed the
basis of the Group’s present medical device and plastic moulding

product operating segments set out in Note 6.

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—ZE-mE %=
FER FAT
Salaries and short-term FehEiEESRET
employee benefits 6,107 12,157
Post-employment benefits BB 152 18 A 82 89
6,189 12,246
33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 3B.ARKRERE
The Group and the Company

AEEREAT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$’'000
—F-—mF —E=F
FET FET

Titron CN (defined as below) BETBRREREE

Current B HA - 16,112
Non-current JEBNER — 7,113
- 23,225

MW-_Z——%—F-+=H" Energy Best
Investments Limited ( 7 5= B H / — R i} B
NA))EBET B fm  TGHLR S sk Bl R
BERAR (BRI YEERZ([EE
) - MAAERLA120,000,0007% 7T B i
EREE & F7,500,000% T8 AR E
5+ &R 5%112,500,0005% 7T bA °] #2 % SR 4%
(MER AT MmRER]) A EEA®
BEEARAETAH (=T ——F+
At+B)BREIHBE(ZZ—AF+=A
ET—B)AITEEER FHEARNE®RE
RATRG - HAM FeFTE T EEE E
EERAEERSERREREBEAE

ik DAl A
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Under the S&P, there was a conversion restriction on HK$40 million
of the Titron CN, which was to be retained by the Vendors for the
purpose of satisfying any claims under the warranties pursuant to
the S&P Agreement. The Vendors undertook to use all reasonable
endeavours to otherwise exercise the conversion rights attaching
to the balance of Titron CN as soon as practicable after the
Completion. The warranty period expired on 30 June 2012. The
Titron CN have a maturity date of 31 December 2015. If the Titron
CN are not converted into shares of the Company by that date, they

are to be redeemed at full face value at 31 December 2015.

The conversion feature in Titron CN meant these convertible notes
constituted a hybrid contract, with a conversion option derivative
embedded into the convertible notes. The terms of Titron CN
contained certain anti-dilution clauses which breached the “fixed
for fixed” rule in HKAS 32. The Group had opted to classify the
entire Titron CN as a financial liability at fair value through profit or

loss.

At the date of issue, Titron CN were valued by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers. The fair value of Titron CN was based on the available
observable market data. The major inputs used in the models were

as follows:

Principal amount (HK$'000) 112,500
Coupon rate 0%
Risk free rate 0.1899%
Market price per share (at date of completion) HK$0.041

3. AR EE (&)

RIEEEGZ EETAREEREN R
fE %l - & 140,000,000 JT 2 B & Al 8 1%
EREREESHEAREEERBETZE
MEARAMNMBEETRE - EHERFEGH
BEBRATBR2N REREBREERS
TERTERITER T EETRREEA
Mz - RERHER =T —ZFX
A=t+HEmM BESEITREKZEZ T
MBEA-ZZT—RFET-A=+—H- i
BEAMBREREEZEZBENRLBAERQFR
AR —_E-RAE+-_A=1+—Bi%
ZEEETUAED-

BEREAERREZ AREHEERELER
BEREBERESEH SALBETET
B} ATBBER - EEATRERERZF
REFCEREESFENEINR [ERE
RE ZETRESER - AEEDBER
U EETEEEERE/BBREREA
REEYR B RE-

.
o

=
il

RETHH BEUTERZEEABIER
HEMITYAFEEAERARME 12
BERRBREEZ AREBEDNRETBEED
GEEmMEE - EUPMAEEHABE
L

rEFE(FET) 112,500
BEX 0%
2 B B 0.1899%
GRTHER (RTKAE) 00418 T

B V0 BT HEHEHES
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 3. AR EE (&)
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On 30 December 2011, approximately HK$72,456,000 of Titron
CN (at nominal principal value) were converted into 1,449,123,800
ordinary shares at the conversion rate of HK$0.05 per share
pursuant to the S&P. The market price of the Company’s shares was

HK$0.033 per share at that date.

On 26 May 2014 (the “Conversion Date”), the remaining Titron CN
of approximately HK$40,044,000 (at nominal principal value) were
converted into 80,087,620 ordinary shares at the conversion rate of
HK$0.50 per share pursuant to the S&P, resulting in an increase in
share capital of HK$801,000 and share premium of HK$26,429,000.
The number of ordinary shares and conversion price had been
duly amended to reflect the Capital Reorganisation carried out
by the Company on 26 March 2013 (10 for 1 share consolidation
and reduction in par value/share). Further details of the Capital
Reorganisation are set out in Note 27. The market price of the

Company’s shares was HK$0.34 per share at the Conversion Date.

The movement of the convertible notes during the year is set out

below:

R-BE——&+-_HA=+8 BEH
72,456,00078 7T 2 fEIE AT IR E R (R A
FASE) BEREEHBAIZRTR0.0557T
2RI EH M A1,449,123,800% & AR
ARBIRME B2 MEREAR0.033B T

W-ZE—MFERA-+NB([KEHE
H]) 8T A 440,044,000 T 2 1
EABRRER(KEE4AeE)BRIE
BEHERERS0B Tz LR Ein
7$80,087,6200% & i@ % - F BUE MR K
801,000/ 7T & % 17 )4 1€ 26,429,000/& JT °
LTEBRHE RAREEZ BB UL
AABRZE—=F=R=+ BETZ
BRAZEH(1061KRHOE M RERTRE
B) MRASBHEZE—SHBFEHNMT27
ARG IR A E 2 T {ERFR0.34

BT

FATBBREE 2 ESHHIIMT

Total
HK$'000
Bt
FHET
Fair value of Titron CN EEREREZRZ AR

At 1 January 2013 R-—E—=&—F—0 21,628
Loss on change in fair value NAEEEY 2 EE 1,597

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZ-ZE—=F+Z_A=+—HBK
—E-mE-HF—H 23,225
Converted into ordinary shares HMBLBR (27,230)
Loss on change in fair value ARBEZHZES 4,005

At 31 December 2014

R-ZB-WE+=ZA=+—H
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34. COMMITMENTS

35.

(a) Capital commitments

The Group did not have any outstanding capital commitments

as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(b) Operating leases — lessee

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leasehold

buildings are as follows:

mEMBRERME

34, &I

(a) EAREE

RZE—NEFER=_ZE—Z=F+=A
=t+—H AEETEESFEEER
A o

(b) EEMHE-FEHBEA

AREERBIAIHEECEHEREE
BFIARSEREMNHAELT :

The Group
EE

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-ImF —E-=F

FHET FHET

Not later than one year —F RN 3,418 4,052
Later than one year but —FRERAFNA

not later than five years 2,481 2,413

5,899 6,465

The leases run for an initial period of one to three years (2013:
one to two years), with options to renew the leases and
renegotiate the terms at the expiry dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective lessors. None of the leases

include contingent rentals.

The Company

The Company did not have any capital or operating lease

commitments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

35.

HENTRB-—Z=F(=ZF—=
F—EMF) EAKEEZHBEA
ERWBE FIEERERAREOR
BFEAHR ZEFHELFBEX
= ke

AT

R-B-—NFER-F-=FFT-A=1+—
A ARRTEEREMERKNEERE
HAE

HREE

RZE—NFER-_T—=F+=_RA=+—
B AEEMEEANAREE-
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36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

36. REHE D M BEERTHK

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of

BEHE
FRIIRH 4. 657 R 2 B A B RIS

financial assets and liabilities as defined in Note 4.6: BREZEEBERAAEBE:
The Group The Company
AEE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE —F-= —E-mE -2z
FER FHET FET FHET
Financial assets BgEE:
Loans and receivables SRR R FRIE
— Trade and other receivables — 8 5 R H MR 11,874 12,526 271 54
- Amounts due from subsidiaries L) PNGIE S - - 28,857 37,542
- Pledged time deposits —EEMEHES 1,546 3,405 - -
~ Cash and cash equivalents —“RekReFEY 62,580 4,576 29,653 480
76,000 20,507 58,781 38,076
Financial liabilities: BREE:
Fair value through profit or loss FRBERERALEBEYE
— Convertible notes designated —JETEAFVIPLZ
as at FVTPL (Note 33) QR ES
(FffE33) - 23,225 - 23,225
Financial liabilities measured RBHERAGERZ
at amortised cost B aE
— Trade and other payables - B S RHEMBEMNZKIEA 31,572 31,513 7,545 7,766
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMEE 2,169 16,064 - 10,000
- Obligation under a finance lease ~ — @b & & &L 16 220 - -
— Amounts due to subsidiaries L ENG RS - - - 1
— Amount due to a director -ENEERA - 12,150 - 12,150
33,757 83,172 7,545 53,142

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Except for convertible notes, all the financial instruments are not

measured at their fair values, as they are short term in nature. It is

considered that their costs or amortised costs approximate their fair

values.

WHBEAARBETEZMBETA

BT =R SN

MBI T AL ERE

HTE W2 MEERARBENE - HX
A EHEA AR BEEAREERS -
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36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 36. ZERHE P2 BEEERMK

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any financial
assets or liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December

2013 are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

EEME#)

TEREHREBAABERRINLZAR
EBEINKRZMBTADN:

£ FRBEEXRABENEEMSL
ZHE (CREHE)

FH: BIAZE-Rz2HmEIN BE
EXBEREE (BER) XM
E(MEERITE)BRZBA
gE &

£ WIHREUEEDHEIESH
ZEERABRWABE (1A
BRz2BABE) -

RZB-—NF+_A=+—0 ~EEEL
EMBRARAL BIZAAEEFEZHS
BEELRE

RZB—=F+-A=+—HB REaH
BRAKARBAARBEAEZIHBHEER
BERAXAEEBERLOT:

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

E—H F_H& E=R fBEr

FET FET FET FET

Convertible notes AR R ERE - 23,225 - 23,225

There were no transfers between levels during the year.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurement

The fair value of the convertible notes as at 31 December 2013
was based on the fair value of the shares expected to be converted
into, with reference to the Company's share price at the end of the

reporting period.

REZFERN > &FH 2 HILEAL(TER -

B-RANEEFTEFRAZMAEE
BRI REARBIE

R-E—Z=Ft+-_A=+—B THAKR
BZAREBENEZ2ERBEHRZEAR
AIRE REBHSAIERIBLERE
2Btz RAEBEFE -

B V0 BT HEHEHES
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. EERmER
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its own

equity share price.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk and currency risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarter, in close co-operation with the board of directors. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing
the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising its

exposure to financial markets.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies

and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers, except for new customers, where payment in

advance is normally required.

AEBEAZZEE RPHES MEREE
REBRTTREEXBBREZAELE - AKH

MAESRERST 2 EZEEMES 2 RE
[z

RAKEZ EREHBRTRMBETAM
ErzTEBRBRAEERR RBESR
N K | i B L B e

AEEGREEETERIEE HBAYB
RREETHE - ERMEARZERBE
STPREBBEREERERT S ZAR
EE REAKEZTEHRSRE -

ZERRIDE T XA EE 2 M5 E R
B R AB PR 1

(i) FERR

AEEZEERRIZERANEES
KEMEYHIA - ERBRAEME
EERR UHBEEMARZEE

[ ez

HESLEMERRENS AR
KREBEEESRZEPHEETER
FEEFGE -ZEFEETIREPBE
R BB & 52 F 8% - A MR B I8 3K
ZEEN LEREFEFEZRFER
RSEEFPREMBIRERRE -E
ZENGRIE S #E R 308 AT
BB MNEAR EZEBAR
EREME- T EENABERER
AEEESR —RME  AEETER
BEPWEERM EREP - RFE
FAN IR -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 35% (2013: 25%) and 78% (2013: 67%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the four largest customers respectively within

the two business segments.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 20.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment on
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to
call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled

repayment dates.

mEMBRERME

mE+ZAE+—ALEE

37. M KERER &)

(i)

(i)

EERR o)

AEEFHE EERREIEZER
FRERSEMZE ERMEETE
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BARMRE HERER/) -RBEH
K AEBFEETEREERAR R
WMEEBS IR ERAEEZAE
PRUREFZHEDREE S ER
IAMEE235% (ZE—=F:25%)
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BERAEEAXEE 5 FH M EUR

EHMEAZEERBCE—FPTEEH
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REE SR
AEBZHRRNDEHERERSHES
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37. M KERER &)
(i) REBELEAR (&)

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group

A%

As at 31 December 2014
R-E-NFE+=A=+-—-8H

Total More than
contractual 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year less than
amount cash flows  or on demand 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRER —FR —FHE
BREE ReRBEE RER HELPREEF
FTERT FTERT FTERT FTET
Non-derivative financial FTEHBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 &E b R FRIE 31,572 31,572 31,572 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2,169 2,169 2,169 =
Obligation under a finance MEMEAE
lease 16 16 16 -
33,757 33,757 33,757 -
As at 31 December 2013
RZZE-Z=Z%+-A=+—H
Total More than
contractual 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted  Within 1 year or less than
amount cash flows on demand 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SHRIREETR —FAK —FE
REE Renena RER LR RF
FET FHT FHT FET
Non-derivative financial FITEBMBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 R M ERRIE 31,513 31,513 31,513 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 16,064 16,064 16,064 -
Amount due to a director ENEERE 12,150 12,150 12,150 -
Obligation under a finance RETHERE
lease 220 241 223 18
59,947 59,968 59,950 18
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. ERERER (&)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBELAR &)
The Company ARATE

As at 31 December 2014
R-B-mFE+=A=+-H

Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRRER —FRH
REE BeRBHEE REXR
T FEx T
Non-derivative financial FTENKEE
liabilities
Other payables H & A< R IE 7,545 7,545 7,545
As at 31 December 2013
RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted cash 1 year or
amount flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHREER —FAK
fREE Renesds® REX
FHET FET FHET
Non-derivative financial FTEHMBEEE
liabilities
Other payables Hth & FRIE 7,766 7,766 7,766
Other borrowings Hifg & 10,000 10,000 10,000
Amount due to a director ENEEHRE 12,150 12,150 12,150
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BT B A R 3R A 1 1 1
29,917 29,917 29,917

B V0 BT HEHEHES
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
loans and overdrafts and other borrowings. Bank loans and
overdrafts issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk while bank loan and other borrowings
issued at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value interest

rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

change exposure should the need arise.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group's and
the Company’s borrowings are disclosed in Note 23 to the

financial statements.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase the Group’s loss for
the year and accumulated losses by approximately HK$11,000
(2013: HK$80,000). Other components of consolidated equity
would have no impact in response to the general increase/

decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that
date. The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting

date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. ERERER &)

(iv) E¥ Rk

(iv) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

AEBEIZRBERTEHEL A2

The functional currency of the Company and most of its AIRERIBHHBARZINEEEE S
subsidiaries are HK$ and RMB, respectively. The Group is AABETRARE KNEBEZRI

exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and purchases
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollars

("US$") and Renminbi (“RMB").

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional

currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of

HIEMEEEBNREEEININZEE

HEZEEMAZEERE

B o 5l Bt

Rz TEREITRARE:

EREEEDAERERZE
EEHE IMEEERZ

group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars e 8% RET  AILVETHETTA
("HK$™), in either HK$ or US$. Given this, management does B -BENIL EEET T FEHEASE

not expect that there will be any significant currency risk

associated with the Group'’s borrowings.

BEBZEEAEMNERERRER -

uss RMB

EYH AR®
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-pmE —E-=% —E-pmEF —E-Z=F
FEx FHET FER FHET
Trade and other receivables B 5 o H it FE W GRIR 9,785 10,234 674 344
Pledged time deposits SR EBETR - - 1,546 3,405
Cash and cash equivalents RAeRBELEED 3,199 643 33 759
Trade and other payables fﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁmlﬁ (2,093) (3,150) (21) (3,342)
Bank and other borrowings TREMEE - (334) = -
Overall net exposure BAER T 10,891 7,393 2,232 1,166

B VI BT HEHNEHES

o
@



AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2014

154

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ_-ZE—[WF+-_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group's loss for the year (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances is in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit or loss and other equity where the HK$ strengthens

against the relevant currency. For a weakening of the HK$

3. ERERER (&)
(ivyE¥ R #)
B E 5T

SRR E R IR E R B A
SEARRER 2 IMEERZ 4T A] gL &
B AKBEZFEER (RRFAER)
iz mNE MmO 2 B -
BRESMEBRAKEZARMZE
B MR BEERTIAE ARERA
ZHEEEB AN 2 BB E-ATIE
BHENEETHEBEREHEZER
ToEEMEMEE N BT
HEEBRENS AAHBEaRE
EEEEREZARTE MAT

against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and ERERER-
opposite impact on the profit or loss and other equity, and the
balances below would be negative.
2014
—E-{mF
Effect on Effect
Increase in loss for on other
foreign the year and components of
exchange rates accumulated losses equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEBAR 3 H 8 55 340
HEEELEFH RitBEzEE a2
FTET FERT
RMB AR 5% (112) -
us$ e 5% (540) -
2013
—E-=F
Effect on Effect
Increase in loss for on other
foreign the year and components of
exchange rates accumulated losses equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEEER HHEMER DM
INEE X EF ZitEBRzYE a-%
TAET FET
RMB AR% 5% (58) -
uss$ e 5% (370) -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to each of the
group entities; exposure to currency risk for both derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,

remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ and
the US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the US$ against other currencies. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the group entities’ profit
or loss for the year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

7. EERERE )

(v E¥RER 2
BREZH (E)

BRRIE 54T TH R TE SN BEE BE SR B R 4R
EHRBEEMET TEEAESE
EER: AIRZAGTEZITERIE
TTHEMBIAZESRAR mAEHE
e (LERFR)ERHTH

MEBRXEEEHEET —EF
E3RE B 2 SMEE & & IE A
B FE st E  REREET
IR HBEXBIEERTLE
hEENEBZ ERNEHMZTIEX
FE LRMROMzBR RRES
EEERRERBGLERITEL IR
FEHRZEXBRERBTAHRZNNZ

AMFERa R Y ERBE %
DN TIREB - — = FHE 2 EEE

7o

% Y e %
\l]]]LV

]]

3. EXREEE

FEBEREASEREBAEE 2 FHERL
BRE WMAE S E RBIRIEH ORI
A% HL At M) 55 4 B S RN &

AEBEEBEREMHRSRERZEEAR
B RENERSBEEKFAESTRZES
BREREHERSEME SARRAHERZE
MR RS TE YRGB RRZ
BEHERNRBETAR

B V0 BT HEHEHES
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. EXEAMERE (&)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net
debts as total debt which includes trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings, amount due to a director, obligations under
a finance lease and convertible notes disclosed in Notes 22, 23, 24,
25 and 33 respectively, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of share capital and reserves as
disclosed in Note 28 and the consolidated statement of changes in

equity respectively.

AEBRBEGFEHCAEEA L XRE
REBAEB - R AEEBELFHE
RERBEHLE(BIEEH REMENK
BHRITREMEE BREEHE BE
fAE AW R TR E® (DRI 22
2324 2533 E) )RR RACSE
BY - EHAEERBEREZ A G

#E (DR F28 R EREEH RN
BT -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ImF ==
FHERT FHET
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNKIA 31,572 31,513
Bank and other borrowings HITREMEE 2,169 16,064
Amount due to a director ENEEE = 12,150
Obligation under a finance lease REREFE 16 204
Convertible notes Bk ER - 16,112
33,757 76,043

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Obligation under a finance lease BhE M E AR - 16
Convertible notes MR ER - 7,113
- 7,129
Total debt BB 33,757 83,172
Less: Pledged time deposits B BHEBTHER (1,546) (3,405)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY (62,580) (4,576)
Net (cash balance)/debt (Rewken) BB FE (30,369) 75,191
Adjusted capital KABREX 48,186 (36,673)
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio ERFEHALCHABRER L X N/A TEA N/A 7T~ i F
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39. UNSUCCESSFUL SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW

SHARES IN 2013

On 4 February 2013 (as supplement on 5 February 2013), the
Company and Billion Develop International Limited (“Subscriber”)
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the
Company had conditionally agreed to issue and allot to the
Subscriber, and the Subscriber had conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 170,000,000 shares (“Subscription Shares”), which are new
shares following the completion of the Capital Reorganisation)
at the subscription price of HK$0.22 per share. The Subscriber
is an investment holding company. To the best of the directors’
knowledge, information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, the Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) were
third parties independent of the Company and its connected

persons (as defined in the Listing Rules).

The aggregate amount payable for the Subscription Shares
was HK$37,400,000. The subscription price was HK$0.22 per

Subscription Share.

At the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 25
March 2013, the Shareholders had passed the special resolution to
approve the capital reorganisation involving the share consolidation,
capital reduction and share premium cancellation, and the ordinary
resolution to approve the subscription agreement dated 4 February
2013 (as supplemented) for the issue set out, inter alia, in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 February 2013 and in the

circular of the Company dated 1 March 2013.

As all the conditions precedent of the subscription agreement had
been fulfilled on 26 March 2013, pursuant to the subscription
agreement, completion of the subscription should have been
taken place on 28 March 2013. However, on 28 March 2013, the
Subscriber failed to proceed to complete the subscription and to pay
the balance of the consideration for the subscription in the sum of
HK$33,660,000. As such the subscription agreement lapsed and the
Company was entitled to forfeit the deposit of HK$3,740,000 paid
by the Subscriber. This was recognised in “Other Income” in the

year ended 31 December 2013 as set out in Note 8.

39. =%

—=FREKNARE
A

R-ZZE—=#-AMA (R=E—=4=A
FEEHE) ’$@ﬂ5§ﬁ&@%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
(TREHFDIIT—MRERE KL A
RRAIEARHRERREF BT REE -
i 52 8 77 B8 1514 [F E 73 #170,000,0008%
Betn ([REEARMD ] - ARTERRAEMAE 2
MRG)  REBEATR022B T -REH
RBREBRRRR EIEH—ARSE
HE - REFHFRM m_\&ﬁﬁﬂ*va'u%‘
REGKREBEBEREAARBIINEARTR
HEEAT (ERR EWBAD2E=F-

PR BE AR 10 FE N 2 424 58 £37,400,00058
ﬁ°§%{ﬁ%{§7/%ﬁﬁuuaﬁﬁy\1ﬁo 22/%71:"

EARBIR -_E—=%F=A_-+hBHE7T
ZHRRFERAS £ RAEBBBHEIRER
BOERARER OF RRH A0 RABDR &
FEROEE)  WBRERREREIER
HA-_T-—=F_ANBZRERZ (K
W) P BT 2 FEIBHN (AR aiE)
RAARBEHAR-Z—=F_"ARB2ZR M
EARABIBHAE-TE—=F=A—H28
BRI A ©

HRRBHEZMEEREHERZZ
—EEEH:‘I—/_\EEEZ*ENETFW@%WJ
u/uﬁﬁ%ﬁréﬁ —=F=A=+)/\H
ﬁ)z A RZT—=F=A=+N\H"
wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁk?&ﬁ%%ﬁ&iﬁwﬁﬁ
FIH 78 TR {E33,660,000/8 T - ALt - 3R
BB SR BANRBREZIGRE
73 2 43,740,000 JT © # 40 f 5E8
ey B gz e N E S —=F+=
A=+—HLFEEAEtlz] PER-

B VI BT HEHNEHES
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(a)

(b)

(o]

(d)

Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on 12
January 2015, the Company decided to cease the operation
of the manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
segment by the end of the first quarter of 2015 upon
completion of the existing customers’ orders. The directors
consider that the recent business environment adversely
affecting the Group, and the cessation of the operation of the
manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products segment
will enable the Group to better utilise its resources to the new

businesses of public relations and human resources.

Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on
12 January 2015, the Company decided to introduce public
relations and human resources businesses to the Group. The
directors consider the introduction of public relations and
human resources businesses will enable corporate growth and

generate stable income to the Group.

Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on 22
January 2015, Qshare Holding Limited (“Qshare”), which was
a substantial shareholder of the Company immediately before
the disposal of the shares of the Company, disposed of all of
its 218,116,000 shares to an independent third party. Qshare is
a company wholly owned by Ms. Leung Mei Han, an executive

director of the Company.

Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on
9 March 2015, the directors of the Company proposed
to implement a capital reorganisation which involves the

following:

(i) every 5 issued and unissued Existing Shares of HK$0.01
each will be consolidated into 1 consolidated share of
HK$0.05 each and where applicable, the total number
of consolidated shares in the issued share capital of the
Company immediately following the share consolidation
will be rounded down to a whole number by cancelling
any fraction in the issued share capital of the Company

which may arise from the share consolidation;

40. REHHRER

(a)

(b)

BERAFAR-_Z—HF—-—A+=H
BRZDM AREREFRAEP
FERKE BB -HFE—FF
RARIEEESERHEBBEREAE
Mmoo R EERA  OHEBRETH
AEE RIEKEHENHELRBE
ELE Moy BB % 7 3 AN S B 58 4 30 R A
BRNRABRANERIE -

BERARAFAR -_Z—HF—-—A+ =R
BRZDM RABRER/AEES]
ARBRANBEREB -EERA
SINRBARANEREBR KA S QA
BRI BAREETRIZERA

BERABIN_T—AF-—A=Z+=
H# % 2 Affi Qshare Holding
Limited ([Qshare ] B AR A&
BOAMABARBRZ EEZRR)A—%
B H =7 HEH216218,116,000
MR 19 o Qshares — B AN A RI#AIT
EEREMU T2 EREB 2T

BRERAAFNR -_ZT—RF=ANHAH#
RZPf RRBEFZZETIR
NI EBEZBRAER:

(i) BHESKREREEETLZE
BT RARBITRARD GG/
I E{E0.058 7T 2 & Bk fn - &
(o@Em) RERRO AR ZA
REDBITRA Z A H B2
2o BEBEERN A ATRE
HZARRREBEITIRAS ZEM
FEpR I NI E R
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(continued)

(d) (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

the issued share capital of the Company will be reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.04 on each of the issued
consolidated shares such that the nominal value of each
issued consolidated share will be reduced from HK$0.05

to HK$0.01;

immediately following the capital reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued consolidated shares of HK$0.05
each will be sub-divided into 5 new shares of HK$0.01

each; and

the credits arising in the books of the Company from the
capital reduction of approximately HK$12,259,000 will
be credited to the contributed surplus account of the

Company within the meaning of the Companies Act.

The reason for these proposals was to reduce the transaction

costs of each board lot for the dealing in the New Shares,

including those fees which are charged with reference to the

number of board lots; and the administrative costs of the

Company.

All of the proposals are subject to approval by the shareholders

at a special general meeting to be held on 27 April 2015.

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 26 March 2015.

40.  REE R HAREE (&)

(%)

(iy BBITHEARAHMERAE (AE
B &TA G IRN0.04B TR
R) HEEgRe#TE RN
Z H{E# H0.05%8 7L HIE Z£0.01
BILMERA AR 2 EHITRA

(i) ZBERAHM%  GAXEE0.05
Bz BREEBREITE R
M4 2SR B AREE0.018
TZEBRA K&

(iv) ERABIRMRARBREEL
Z#EEX12,259,000/8 T A A
DEVEFTRE Z AR RBA AL
EEO

REBBEZB D RRLDE AL
FEEBUZRIAA (BEZR
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MBHE

1. RESULTS 1. ¥4

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t-HLEFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
—E-mF —T-=F —T-=F —T——fF —T-TF
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHET
(&%) (E7)
Turnover BER 76,470 89,006 157,855 125,955 169,925
(Loss)/profit before taxation — BrEiAT (E51E) & (48,287) (74,754) (55,783) 1,095 (108,583)
Income tax credit/(expenses)  FTi5Hii& %, (FX) - 141 251 (197) (554)
Profit/(loss) for the year from B R [HEE ¥R
discontinued operations FEHEF, (FE) - - 10,882 (82,384) (274,774)
Loss for the year FEBE (48,287) (74,613) (44,650) (81,486) (383,911)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A i - - - 976 543
Loss for the year attributable AR AEA A
to owners of the Company Bl FEBIE (48,287) (74,613) (44,650) (80,510) (383,368)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EERAE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-QmF -F-= —F-—F —EFF —E-TF
FHT FHT FHT FHET FHET
Assets BE
Property, plant and M- BWEREE
equipment 3,169 6,009 17,576 22,047 23,395
Goodwill [ = 11,836 45,907 67,362 -
Other assets Hp&E 78,774 28,654 49,373 113,381 118,161
V N
b= Total assets BEE 81,943 46,499 112,856 202,790 141,556
N
& Liabilities =1
(a4 N
= Current liabilities nBEE 33,757 76,043 63,154 106,369 89,715
2
g Non-current liabilities FERBEE - 7,129 12,150 15,287 183,999
<
2
% Total liabilities BEE 33,757 83,172 75,304 121,656 273,714
% Total assets less total liabilities 484 2,
g BEE 48,186 (36,673) 37,552 81,134 (132,158)
I Non-controlling interests FEFERR I - - - 1,519 543
0
Z Equity/(capital deficiency) AAFEE AL
8 attributable to BRE/ (BXREH)
<§( owners of the Company 48,186 (36,673) 37,552 82,653 (131,615)
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